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OFFICERS 
Moderator ..................................... Bob Ketchum 

Rt. 5, Box 67, Bixby, OK 74008 
Assistant Moderator ........................... Bob Thompson 

Box 684, Poteau, OK 74953 
Clerk ........................................... Keith Burden 

1201 S. Ash, Ada, OK 74820 
Assistant Clerk .................................. Bob Thomas 

Pecan Tree Estates #2, Lexington, OK 73051 
Executive Secretary ............................ Connie Cariker 

P.O. Box 7527, Moore, OK 73153 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
Allen Moore (Progressive) ............................. 7 years 
Lynn Wood (Greater Tulsa) ........................... 6 years 
Bailey Thompson (Greater Tulsa) Chairman ............. 5 years 
0. J. Hood (South Grand River) Clerk ................. 4 years 
Jack Richey (First Oklahoma) .......................... 3 years 
Charles Bigger (Greater Tulsa) ......................... 2 years 
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MISSION BOARD 
J. C. Morgan (Greater Tulsa) .......................... 7 years 
Danny Hester (Northeast Oklahoma) Vice Chairman . .... 6 years 
Wade Jernigan (Center) Chairman ..................... 5 years 
J. B. Chism (Greater Tulsa) Clerk .................... 4 years 
Homer Young (Kiamichi) .............................. 3 years 
David Bigger (First Mission) ........................... 2 years 
Leroy Holman (Center) ............................... 1 year 

CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD 
Dennis Cariker (First Oklahoma) ....................... 5 years 
Marvin Harris (Dibble) ................................ 5 years 
David Taylor (Kiamichi) Clerk ......................... 4 years 
Terry Van Winkle (Greater Tulsa) Vice Chairman ....... 4 years 
Phil Akin (Greater Tulsa) .............................. 3 years 
Don Guthrie (First Oklahoma) Chairman ..........••... 3 years 
Mike Wade (First Oklahoma) .......................... 2 years 
Paul Allen (Greater Tulsa) ............................. 2 years 
Frank Young (Progressive) ............................ 1 year 
Caroll Milner (Center) ................................. 1 year 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Howard Gwartney (South Grand River) ................. 5 years 
Waldo Young (First Oklahoma) ........................ 5 years 
Clarence Hearron (Hopewell #1) ....................... 4 years 
Garry Richey (First Oklahoma) Clerk ................... 4 years 
Curtis Linton (Northeast Oklahoma) .................... 3 years 
James Puckett (First Oklahoma) ....................... 3 years 
David McDougal (Center) Vice Chairman ............... 2 years 
Ron Barber (Greater Tulsa) Chairman .................. 2 years 
Earl Scroggins (Center) ............................... 1 year 
Dale Smith (First Oklahoma) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 year 

GENERAL BOARD MEMBERS FOR 1989 
Arbuckle ........................................... Jeff Sloan 
Arkansas Valley ................................. Marvin Mann 
Canadian . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Randall Miller 
C:enter ......................................... James Murray 
Dibble ..................................... Nelson Henderson 
Eureka . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Roy Bryant 
Fellowship ................................... Billy Joe Gentry 
First Mission ...................................... Ed Jenkins 
First Oklahoma ...................................... Joe Blair 
Gaines Creek .................................. Albert Jarrett 
Greater Tulsa ............................... Bailey Thompson 
Hopewell #1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Wayne Smith 
Hopewell #2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Ralph Mullins 
Kiamichi ....................................... Homer Young 
Little River . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Ray Pearce 
New Life ........................................ Lloyd Morris 
Northeast ....................................... R. D. Hester 
Poteau River Valley ............................. Stanley Smith 
Progressive .................................... Sherman Webb 
Robert's McGee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Syble Henry 
Southeastern . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Ed Hollie 
South Grand River ............................. Ray Gwartney 
Union ....................................... Sandy Shepherd 

PROCEEDINGS 
The Eightieth annual session of the Oklahoma State Association of 

Free Will Baptists met October 17-20, 1988 at the Cherokee Strip 
Conference Center in Enid, Oklahoma. 

A vocal ensemble from the First Free Will Baptist Church in Ada, 
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Oklahoma began the pre-service by singing a number of musical 
selections. 

Clarence Hearron welcomed the convention and led in the opening 
prayer. 

Pastor Charles Bigger from Enid, Oklahoma brought greetings to 
the convention as the pastor of the host church. 

Bob Williams led the congregation in singing "Victory in Jesus." 
The convention was called into official session by the clerk, Keith 

Burden, who also introduced the officers. The other officers included 
Assistant Clerk Bob Thomas, Assistant Moderator Bob Thompson, 
Executive Secretary Connie Cariker, and Moderator Bob Ketchum. 
Following the introduction of the officers, Brother Ketchum shared 
some brief remarks with the body. 

The congregation sang, "He Lives." Clarence Hearron introduced a 
quartet from the Ada Church to bring the special music and the 
speaker George Harvey, Jr. 

Pastor Harvey read from Psalm 119:151-152 and Deuteronomy 
11:18-21 and spoke on the subject, "The Bible-Our Sure 
Foundation." 

Assistant Moderator Bob Thompson read the report of the 
Committee on Committees. The committee members were: 

COMMITTEE ON COMMITTEES 
0. J. Hood (Chairman) ............ South Grand River 
David Archer ........................... Greater Tulsa 
Keith Woody .......................... First Oklahoma 
David Bigger ............................ First Mission 
Allen Wood . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Progressive 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE 
Charles Murphy (Chairman) .................... Union 
Dan Harper ........................... First Oklahoma 
J. C. Morgan .......................... Greater Tulsa 
Homer Young ............................... Kiamichi 
Terrell Holland .................... South Grand River 

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE 
Lonnie DaVoult (Chairman) .................... Dibble 
Rue Dell Smith ........................ First Oklahoma 
Allen Moore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Progressive 
Glen Lewis ........................ South Grand River 
Larry Haggard. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Union 
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PUBLIC MORALS COMMITTEE 

J. B. Chism (Chairman) ................. Greater Tulsa 
Jeff Sloan ................................... Arbuckle 
George Harvey, Jr ......................... Little River 
Steve Turner ...................... South Grand River 
Chris Clay .................................... Union 

OBITUARY COMMITTEE 
Dan Farmer (Chairman) . ............... First Oklahoma 
Harry Standley .......................... First Mission 
Roger Harwell .......................... Greater Tulsa 
Danny Hester .............................. Northeast 
Phillip Bender ..................... South Grand River 

Bob Ketchum shared some announcements and Lewis Perry led in 
the closing prayer. 

WEDNESDAY MORNING 
The meeting was called to order at 9:15 a.m. Bob Thomas led the 

congregation in singing "Leaning on the Everlasting Arms." Dr. 
Melvin Worthington brought devotional thoughts from II Timothy 
4:13. 

Moderator Bob Ketchum presented a plaque in memory of Jerry 
Dudley to the family for his years of service to the Oklahoma State 
Association. 

Item #1 of the General Board report was read. Motion carried to 
adopt item #1. 

Motion carried to adopt item #2 of the General Board report and 
follow the printed program. 

Bailey Thompson gave the report of the Executive Board. Connie 
Cariker gave the report of the Executive Secretary, including the 
financial report. A plaque was presented to Sandy Shepherd by the 
Executive Board in appreciation for 31 years of service on the 
Executive Board. A motion carried to adopt both reports. 

Item #3 of the General Board report was read. A motion carried to 
adopt item #3. 

Melvin Worthington gave the report of the Executive Office of the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists. 

The clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. Allen 
Moore was nominated for the seven year position on the Executive 
Board. Allen Moore was elected to the Executive Board. 

Ray Martin gave the report of the Free Will Baptist Book Store. 
Motion carried to accept the report. 

Joe Blair gave the report of the Benevolent Committee. Motion 
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carried to adopt the report. 
The clerk read item #4 of the General Board report. Motion carried 

to adopt item #4. 
Motion and second "That Connie Cariker go to Illinois to meet with 

Reford Wilson's creditors to discuss what they will settle for, then 
authorize the Executive Board to borrow the money to pay the 
medical bills, and then raise the money to pay off the loan." The 
motion carried. 

WEDNESDAY MORNING WORSHIP 
Bob Thomas led the congregation in singing "He Lives." 
Keith Woody welcomed the congregation and led in prayer. 
Brother Woody introduced Pastor Buddy Drake from Oklahoma 

City to bring the message. 
Rev. and Mrs. Joe Cutler ministered in special music by singing 

"There's a City Being Built." 
Buddy Drake read Acts 20:17-32 and spoke on the subject, "A 

Testimony of Faithfulness." 
Rue Dell Smith prayed the benediction. 

WEDNESDAY AFTERNOON 
The session opened with the congregation singing "All That Thrills 

My Soul is Jesus." 
Phillip Bender brought devotional thoughts from I Samuel 15. 

Curtis Linton led in prayer. 
Wade Jernigan gave the State Mission Baord report. Berton Perry 

gave the State Mission Director's report. The pastors of Vinita and 
Woodward gave brief reports about the missions work there. Mo.tion 
carried to adopt the report. 

Trymon Messer gave the report of the National Home Missions 
Department. 

Eugene Waddell gave the report of the National Foreign Missions 
Department. 

The clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. J. C. 
Morgan was nominated for the seven year position on the board. J. C. 
Morgan was elected. 

Herman Hersey gave the report of the National Board of 
Retirement and Insurance. 

Don Guthrie gave the report of the Christian Education Board. A 
plaque was presented to Kent Hubbard by the board in appreciation 
for his years of service on the Christian Education Board. Motion 
carried to adopt the Christian Education Board report. 

Larry Hampton gave the report of the National Sunday School and 
Church Training Department. 
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The clerk read a partial report of the Resolutions Committee. 
Motion carried to postpone resolution #1 indefinitely. 

The clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. 
Dennis Cariker and Marvin Harris were nominated to fill the two five 
(5) year positions on the Christian Education Board. Dennis Cariker 
and Marvin Harris were elected. Terry Van Winkle was nominated to 
fill the unexpired four year term of Phillip Bender. Terry Van Winkle 
was elected. 

David McDougal gave the Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College Board 
of Trustees report. Edwin Wade gave the President's report. Richard 
Terry represented the Public Relations Department. Motion carried 
to adopt the College Trustees report. Frank Wiley was presented a 
plaque by the College in appreciation for his years of service on the 
Board of Trustees. 

Bob Shockey gave the report for Free Will Baptist Bible College. 
The clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. 

Howard Gwartney and Waldo Young were nominated to fill the two 
five (5) year positions on the Hillsdale Board of Trustees. Howard 
G_)Nartney and Waldo Young were elected. 

WEDNESDAY EVENING SERVICE 
"Witness Quartet" sang a number of musical selections during the 

pre-service music time. 
Bob Thomas led the congregation in singing, "Brethren We Have 

Met to Worship." 
Curtis Linton recognized a group from the Woodward church and 

brought greetings. Lonnie Burks led in prayer. 
The congregation sang "What a Day That Will Be." Joe Grizzle led 

in prayer and the convention offering was received. 
"Witness Quartet" provided the special music for the evening 

worship service. 
Curtis Linton introduced pastor Lynn Wood from Tulsa, Oklahoma 

to bring the evening message. His text was Amos 3:3. He spoke on 
the subject, "Together We Can." 

After announcements had been given, the Young brothers sang 
"Pearly White City." Curtis Linton led in the closing prayer. 

THURSDAY MORNING 
The morning session began with the congregation singing, "How 

Great Thou Art." Roger Harwell brought devotional thoughts from 
Mark 7:24-30. 

Dan Farmer gave the report of the Historical Commission. Motion 
carried to adopt the report. 
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The clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. 
DeArthur Yandell was nominated to fill the three (3) year position on 
the Historical Commission. DeArthur Yandell was elected. 

Motion carried to receive the Resolutions Committee report and 
consider it item by item. 
(NOTE: Resolution #1 was brought before the body on Wednesday 
afternoon and postponed indefinitely.) 

Motion carried to adopt Resolution #2. 
Motion carried to adopt Resolution #3. 
Motion carried to adopt Resolution #4. 
Dan Farmer gave the report of the Obituary Committee and 

requested that the delegates stand and observe the deaths of our 
brothers and sisters with a silent prayer. Motion carried to adopt the 
Obituary Committee report. 

The clerk read the report of the Public Morals Committee. Motion 
carried to adopt the report. 

Motion carried to adopt item #5 of the General Board report. 
Motion carried to adopt item #6 of the General Board report. 
Motion carried to adopt item #7 of the General Board report. 
The clerk read the nominations for membership on the 1989 

General Board. Following various additions and corrections a motion 
carried to elect these men to the General Board for 1989. 

Waymon Ray gave the report of the Oklahoma State Master's Men 
organization. 

James Vallance gave the report of the National Master's Men 
Department. 

Leroy Holman gave the report of the Oklahoma Minister's 
Conference. 

The clerk read the final report of the Nominating Committee. Bob 
Ketchum was nominated to serve as Moderator. He was elected. 

Bob Thompson was nominated to serve as Assistant Moderator. 
He was elected. 

Keith Burden was nominated to serve as Clerk. He was elected. 
Bob Thomas was nominated to serve as Assistant Clerk. He was 

elected. 
Motion carried to adjourn and enter into the morning worship 

service. 

THURSDAY MORNING WORSHIP 
Bob Thomas led the congregation in singing "My Saviour's Love." 

Lonnie DaVoult led in the opening prayer. 
Sandy Shepherd brought greetings and introduced the speaker for 

the morning worship service. 
The Oklahoma Minister's Quartet sang "The Prodigal Son," and 

"The Sun's Coming Up." 
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Richard Terry read Luke 23:27-38 for his text and spoke on the 
subject, "They Met At the Cross." 

Following the service, Moderator Bob Ketchum shared some 
announcements and the service was dismissed by the congregation 
singing "Amazing Grace." 

THE GENERAL BOARD REPORT 

The General Board of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will 
Baptists met October 17, 1988 at the Free Will Baptist Church in 
Enid, Oklahoma. As a result of that meeting, we off er the following 
items for your consideration. 

1. We received communication from twenty-three of the twenty-four 
District Associations comprising the membership of this body. We 
recommend their letters be received and their delegates seated. 

2. We heard the reports of the Executive Board, the Executive 
Secretary, Free Will Baptist Book Store, the Benevolent 
Committee, the State Mission Board, Christian Education Board, 
the Board of Trustees of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, and 
the Oklahoma Historical Commission. 

We forward the reports of these departments and recommend their 
adoption. 

3. We recommend that the 1990 State Convention be held in Ada, 
Oklahoma. 

4. We recommend that the Benevolent Committee be dissolved and 
any future revenues be distributed by the Executive Office. 

5. We recommend that the Oklahoma Historical Commission's 
request for $500.00 from the Executive Office to fund its work for 
another year be approved. 

6. As the budget committee we recommend a Cooperative Budget 
of $310,000.00 be adopted for the 1989-90 year. 
We further recommend that the cooperative funds be distributed 
according to the following percentages and that the budgets of the 
boards be set accordingly. 

Executive Board .................. 22% $ 68,200.00 
Christian Education Board......... 6% $ 18,600.00 
State Mission Board .............. 15% $ 46,500.00 
Hillsdale FWB College ............. 28% $ 86,800.00 
National Ministries ................ 29% $ 89,900.00 

100% $310,000.00 
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7. We recommend the budgets of each department as 
requested in these amounts: 

Executive Department ................. $ 96,900.00 
Christian Education Board ............. $ 45,000.00 
State Mission Board .................. $ 299,000.00 
Hillsdale FWB College ................ $ 894,116.00 
Free Will Baptist Book Store .......... $ 455,000.00 

$1,790,016.00 

RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE REPORT 
RESOLUTION #1 

Whereas, there are two (2) members of the Christian Education 
Board with terms which will expire this year, and 
Whereas, there is one four (4) year board member who is moving 
out of state and his position will become vacant, therefore, be it 
Resolved, that the constitution be amended by deleting the first 
paragraph of Section 5 under Article VIII and inserting the 
following statement: 

"The Board of Christian Education shall consist of seven (7) 
elected members who are members of an affiliated association and 
in good standing with the association of which they are members. 
They shall be elected at the discretion of this association." 

And that Article VII be amended by deleting the words "except: 
(1) the Board of Christian Education which shall consist of 10 
members who shall serve five years with two members elected 
annually," and re-aligning the following exceptions in their proper 
numerical order. 
RESOLUTION #1 WAS POSTPONED INDEFINITELY 

RESOLUTION #2 
Whereas, in recent years concern has been expressed by 
missionaries, Foreign and Home Missions Departments, and 
pastors over the difficulty of raising funds for missionaries, and 
Whereas, in many cases travel expenses equal or exceed the 
amount raised by the missionary due to the difficulty in scheduling 
week-night services and missionaries are often required to overlap 
their travel schedule due to lack of coordination, and 
Whereas, we must find a solution to this problem, and after 
discussing this with both denominational mission departments, 
the State Mission Board, and many Oklahoma pastors, therefore, 
be it 



Resolved, that the Oklahoma State Association recommend: 
1. Annual state-wide missions revivals be conducted by the 

churches throughout Oklahoma during the months of November 
and April. 

2. Region 1 consist of First Oklahoma, Union, Dibble, Hopewell 
#2, Canadian, Arbuckle, Center, Progressive, and First Mission 
Associations (125 churches) and that they meet in November each 
year. 

3. Region 2 consist of Arkansas Valley, Eureka, Fellowship, 
Gaines Creek, Greater Tulsa, Green Country, Kiamichi, Little 
River, New Life, Northeast, Poteau River Valley, Roberts McGee, 
Southeastern, South Grand River, and Hopewell #1 Associations 
(135 churches) and that they meet in April each year. 

4. Every Association be written and urged to adopt and 
participate in this effort. 

RESOLUTION #3 
Whereas, the Arkansas State Association of Free Will Baptists 
has formulated a Burial Agreement Plan called the "Sharing 
Together" Group, and 
Whereas, it is believed that such a program would be beneficial 
to ministers in Oklahoma, therefore, be it 
Resolved, that the Oklahoma State Executive Department formu­
late a Burial Agreement Program and bring back a recommen­
dation with specific details to the 1989 State Association. 

RESOLUTION #4 
Whereas, we have enjoyed beautiful facilities, and 
Whereas, the Enid Free Will Baptist Church opened their building 
and their hearts to welcome us, and 
Whereas, their members have worked hard in registration, 
handing out materials, etc., therefore, be it 
Resolved that we say "thank you" to the Enid Free Will Baptist 
Church with a rising vote of appreciation. 

PUBLIC MORALS COMMITTEE REPORT 
According to I Thessalonians 5:22 we are told to "abstain from all 

appearance of evil." We as Free Will Baptists believed this so 
intently that our Church Covenant reads, "We promise by His 
Grace to love and obey Him in all things, to avoid all appearance 
of evil, to abstain from all sinful amusements and unholy 
conformity to the world ... " This committee, in light of today's 
clouded morals, strongly urge rededication to this lifestyle. 
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f 
! 1. We strongly oppose the sanction or use of television net­

works such as HBO, Showtime, TMC, Cinemax, etc. . .. who 
produce and televise evil and sinful amusements. 

2. We, heartbroken and disgusted, openly oppose the release 
and viewing of the motion picture, "The Last Temptation." 

3. We very earnestly exhort our people to continue to do, all 
that we do, in conduct, in conviction, and in commitment to the 
glory of God. 

OBITUARY COMMITTEE. REPORT 
According to the information we received from the letters from the 

District Associations to the State Association, there were 199 deaths 
in our churches last year including the following ministers from these 
associations: 

Arkansas Valley .......... Rev. Walter Warner 
Center ..................... Rev. Jerry Dudley 
Eureka ................... Rev. P. E. Lambert 
South Grand River .......... Rev. Ray Blevins 

We ask that we observe their passing with a moment of silent 
prayer. 

MINISTER'S CONFERENCE REPORT 
Registration totaled 127 (113 ministers and 14 visitors). 
Received $174.00 in dues, and $178.71 in offering ($352.71). 
Preachers for the conference: Lonny Burks, Trymon Messer and 

David Bigger. 
Special music was provided by the Minister's Quartet. 
Special recognition was given to Jeff Sloan, the winner of the first 

"Jerry Dudley Preaching Award" presented by Hillsdale Free· Will 
Baptist College. 
BUSINESS: 

1. Motion carried to accept the written minutes and treasurer's 
report. 
2. Motion carried that the Minister's Conference meet annually 
during the State Association (see minutes of1987, page 45, article 
5, which shall read-"This conference shall meet annually." 
3. Motion carried that the dollar amount that is shown in 
the Minister's Conference Constitution be deleted (see 1987 
minutes, page 45, articles 1 and 4, which shall now read: Article 1 
- "The Minister's Conference shall be called the Oklahoma State 
Free Will Baptist Minister's Conference, and shall be composed of 
ordained Free Will Baptist Ministers who are regular members of 
some orthodox Free Will Baptist church in the State of Oklahoma 
who have paid their annual dues." Article 4 - "Members of this 
organization shall be all ordained ministers who participate in the 
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benefits and activities of this body, and associate members who 
become members by payment of the annual dues." 
4. Motion carried to increase dues effective in October 1989 to 
$5.00 per minister. 
5. Motion carried to receive an offering to be applied to the 
honorariums for this conference ($178. 71). 
6. Officers for 1988-89 elected: 

President-Leroy Holman 
Vice President-Steve Turner 
Secretary/Treasurer-David Taylor 

7. Request was made to send out notices of dues to all ministers. 

STA TE MASTER'S MEN REPORT 
During the past year we have driven several hundred miles 

promoting Master's Men. Our results are minimal ... two promise to 
join and several have said perhaps. 

We have 19 chapters and approximately 250 churches. In 1956 
when the Master's Men was started, many chapters organized, but 
many have discontinued. Why? No workers, not interested, pastors 
are not supportive. 

Regardless of the reason, we challenge each layman and pastor 
without a Master's Men group to please convert over to Master's Men 
and let's work as a unit and see what we can accomplish for God. 

I can change Oklahoma. I can change Master's Men. Bring a can 
full of change to next year's meeting, and put the National Master's 
Men fund into the BLACK and also take care of all local needs. 

Home Missions Land Fund: loan $5,000.00 to the land fund, then 
receive 12.5% to 15% write-off for income tax purposes. We need 20 
people willing to loan $5,000.00 each to purchase land to be used as 
collateral for borrowing money for building churches. Then all the 
Master's Men under Brother Howard Gwartney to build the church. 
Then pay off the building and start over again. 

Parable of the fig tree. Luke 13:6-9. As Free Will Baptist laymen, are 
we producing fruit? Have we been cut down? Do we need special 
care? What is our problem? 

Let's become lifetime members. Let's organize new chapters. Let's 
fill our money cans. Let's complete our land fund. Let's build mission 
churches. 

Let us put our shoulder to the plow and work for God as we never 
have before. Time is running out to get people saved. Invite us to your 
quarterly meeting. I HAVE TIME AND. WILL TRAVEL. Please call 
me. 

We are publishing a quarterly news update and mailing it to all 
pastors in Oklahoma. It contains news of Oklahoma and National 
Master's Men. Please send news items about the projects of your 
men's groups. Waymon Ray, President 
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EXECUTIVE BOARD REPORT 

The Executive Board met three times this past year. One of the 
meetings was with all the boards in November. We feel that these All­
Boards meetings are productive and will prove to be a blessing to our 
state work. The next All-Boards Meeting will be in Henryetta, 
November 11-12, 1988. 

The yearly meeting was held to examine the audits and set the 
budgets for the Bookstore and Executive Office. The Board 
recommends the following: 
1. A Cooperative budget of $310,000.00. 
2. That the Cooperative receipts for 1989-90 be the same (22%) for 

the Executive Office. 
3. That the 1990 State Convention be held at Ada. 
Bailey Thompson, Chairman 
Orville Hood, Clerk 

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY REPORT 

~ Another rewarding year for me as I have had the privilege to be in 
many of our churches and associations. Oklahoma Free Will Baptists 
have been very kind to invite me to preach and share information 
concerning our work. 

I'm thankful for all the men who serve on our State Boards. There is 
a good effort of cooperation between all our boards for which we are 
most grateful. 

We are continuing to push forward with out State Cooperative Plan 
of Support. We had an increase.of $16,245 over last year. Oklahoma 
churches gave more than they ever had to this Program of support. I 
hope to see an increase this year. Our Designated Giving decreased 
by $54,330. This was due to two of our Missionaries coming back to 
Oklahoma from missionary service. 

Looking forward to another good year as we all work together to 
advance the Lord's work here and around the world. 
Executive Secretary 
Connie D. Cariker 

STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 
TOGETHER WITH AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON 

July 16, 1988 
To the Executive Board 

THE STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
We have audited the balance sheets of the State Association of 
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Free Will Baptists as of June 30, 1988 and 1987, and the related 
statements of revenues and expenditures and fund balances, and 
cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are 
the responsibility of the State Association's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State 
Association of Free Will Baptists as of June 30, 1988 and 1987, and the 
related statements of revenues and expenditures and its cash flows 
for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 
Robin L. Byford 

STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
BALANCE SHEETS 

JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash ............................ $ 
Insurance premiums receivable .... . 

$ 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 1) 

1988 

54,596 
2,019 

56,615 

Office building ................... $ 103,726 
Building improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,716 
Furniture & fixtures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43,161 
Printing equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,599 

$ 175,202 
Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . (89,784) 

$ 85,418 
OTHER ASSETS 

Mortgage receivable .............. $ 
TOTAL ASSETS ............... $ 

16 

7,963 
149,996 

$ 

$ 

1987, 

41,575 
2,068 

43,643 

$ 103,726 
19,716 
43,161 

4,599 
$ 171,202 

(77,745) 
$ 93,457 

$ 8,224 
$ 145,324 



LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Payroll taxes payable ............. $ 
Designated contributions payable .. . 

FUND BALANCE 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

$ 
$ 

764 
18,459 
19,223 

130,773 

$ 

$ 
$ 

714 
11,644 
12,358 

132,966 

FUND BALANCE ............ $ 149,996 $ 145,324 
financial The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 

statements. 

STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND FUND 

BALANCES FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

REVENUES 1988 · 1987 
Designated Receipts 

Designated contributions ........ $ 
, Cooperative contributions ...... . 

Benevolent Sunday fund ....... . 
Benevolent fund oil royalties .... . 

$ 
Executive Office Receipts 

Executive Secretary speaking .... $ 
Interest income ............... . 
Cooperative contributions ...... . 
State convention fees .......... . 
National convention fees ....... . 
Designated contributions ....... . 
Other income ................. . 

$ 
Total Income ................ $ 

EXPENDITURES 
Designated Expenditures 

Designatured expenditures ...... $ 
Cooperative expenditures (Note 3) 
Benevolent Sunday fund ....... . 
Benevolent fund disbursements .. 

$ 
Executive Office Expenditures 

Executive secretary salary ....... $ 
Payroll taxes, retirement plan 

and hospitalizatfon ........... . 
Housing and utilities ........... . 
Executive secretary travel ...... . 
Executive board travel ......... . 

17 

534,818 
234,504 

10,766 
3,100 

783,188 

8,227 
4,484 

62,337 
6,450 
2,580 
1,654 

12,714 
98,446 

881,634 

534,818 
234,504 

10,766 
3,100 

783,188 

20,800 

7,190 
8,680 
7,497 
1,092 

$ 

$ 

589,148 
221,671 

-0-
9,643 

820,462 

$ 6,435 
4,258 

58,925 
6,460 
9,186 
6,866 

16,025 
$ 108,154 
$ 928,616 

$ 589,148 
221,671 

-0-
12,448 

$ 823,267 

$ 19,382 

7,115 
8,826 
7,473 
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Secretarial salaries ............. . 
Promoter publications .......... . 
Telephone and utilities ......... . 

· State and national convention .. . 
Supplies ....................... . 
Repairs, maintenance and 

insurance ................... . 
Miscellaneous ................. . 
Depreciation (Note 1) .......... . 
Dues and subscriptions ........ . 

$ 
Total Expenditures ........... $ 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES·. 

13,369 
7,581 
5,609 
9,822 
1,037 

3,950 
1,670 

12,039 
303 

100,639 
946,164 

$ 
$ 

OVER EXPENDITURES .......... $ (2,193) $ 
FUND BALANCE, beginning........ 132,966 
FUND BALANCE, ending ........... $ 130,773 $ 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
statements. 

13,208 
7,094 
5,592 

18,286 
817 

4,784 
654 

11,639 
265 

106,037 
988,229 

(688) 
133,654 
132,966 
financial 

STA TE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

1988 1987 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES: 

Net income ...................... $ (2,193) $ (688) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income 

to net cash provided by operating 
activities: 
Depreciation ................... 12,039 11,639 
Changes in current assets and 

liabilities: 
(Increase) Decrease in hospital-

ization premiums receivable . 49 1,515 
Decrease (Increase) in accrued 

expenses .................. 50 47 
Decrease (Increase) in desig-

nated contributions payable . 6,815 (2,358) 
. Decrease (Increase) in 

Benevolent Funds payable ... -0- (2,805) 
Total Adjustments .............. $ 18,953 $ 8,038 

Net Cash Provided by Operating 
Activities ...................... $ 16,760 $ 7,350 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES: 

Acquisition of equipment ........ -0- (1,232) 
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Acquisition of bldg. improvement 
Collection of mortgage principal . 

Net Cash Used In Investing 
Activities ...................... $ 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash ... • .. $ 
Cash at the beginning of the year .. . 
Cash at the end of the year ......... $ 
The accompanying notes are an integral 
statements. 

(4,000) 
261 

(3,739) 
13,021 
41,575 
54,596 
part of 

$ 
$ 

$ 
these 

-0-
258 

(974) 
6,375 

35,200 
41,575 

financial 

STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
General-The State Association of Free Will Baptists is a non­
profit organization designed to provide central leadership and 
representation for the Free Will Baptists of Oklahoma and to 
•handle certain receipts and disbursements of the Free Will Baptist 
Churches. The Association uses the fund method of accounting, 
whereby the fund balance represents the equity the Association 
has in its assets. This accounting method is generally accepted 
among non-profit organizations as the most feasible way of 
reflecting their financial activity and position. 
Property and Equipment-Property and equipment are recorded 
at cost. Depreciation is computed using· the,straight-line method 
based on the estimated useful lives of 'the related assets. 
Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to 
operations when incurred while major betterments and renewals 
are capitalized. · 

(2) MORTGAGE RECEIVABLE 
The executive residence was sold on May 30, 1974 for $20,500. 
The buyer assumed the mortgage on the property and gave the 
Association a second mortgage in the amount of $10,300. 
Payments began on July 1, 1974. The rate of interest is 8% and the 
mortgage is for thirty years. 

(3) COOPERATIVE CONTRIBUTIONS AND EXPENDITURES 
The State Association receives contributions to be cooperatively 
allocated among board approved organizations. The percentage 
allocation of Cooperative Contributions for the year ended June 
30, 1988 and 1987 was as follows: 

State Association ............ . 
Hillsdale College ............. . 
State Mission Board ......... . 
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1988 
21% 
28% 
15% 

June 30, 
1987 
21% 
28% 
15% 



CE Board .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6% 6% 
National Association of 

Free Will Baptists . . . . . . . . . . 30% 30% 
100% 100% 

INCOME 

PROPOSED EXECUTIVE OFFICE BUDGET 
1989-1990 

Executive Secretary Speaking .................... $ 
Interest Income ................................ . 
State Convention Fees ......................... . 
National Convention Fees ...................... . 
Designated Contributions ....................... . 
COOP (22%) .................................. . 
Other Income ................................. . 

TOTAL .................................... $ 
EXPENDITURES 

Executive Secretary ............................. $ 
Secretary-Bookkeeper .......................... . 
Hospitalization Insurance ....................... . 
Retirement .................................... . 
·social Security ................................ . 
Housing ....................................... . 
Utilities ....................................... . 
Telephone ..................................... . 
Executive Secretary Travel ..................... . 
Executive Board Expense ....................... . 
Postage ....................................... . 
Promoter ..................................... . 
Office Supplies ................................ . 
Building Maintenance and Repair ................ . 
Equipment Maintenance and Repair .............. . 
State Convention Expense ...................... . 
National Convention Expense ................... . 
Yearly Audit .................................. . 
Miscellaneous Expense ......................... . 

TOTAL .................................... $ 

2,400.00 
4,200.00 
6,500.00 
2,600.00 
8,200.00 

68,200.00 
4,800.00 

96,900.00 

21,800.00 
14,000.00 
3,000.00 
1,800.00 
5,200.00 
7,200.00 
4,800.00 
3,000.00 
8,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 
8,000.00 
1,200.00 
4,000.00 
1,500.00 
6,500.00 
2,600.00 
1,300.00 
1,000.00 

96,900.00 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE 
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF JUNE 30, 1988 and 1987 
Together With Auditor's Report Thereon 

July 9, 1988 
To the Executive Board 

THE STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
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We have audited the balance sheets of the OKLAHOMA FREE 
WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE, as of June 30, 1988, and 1987, and the 
related statements of income, fund balance and cash flows for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Bookstore's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audits. · 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly the financial position of the Oklahoma Free · Will Baptist 
Bookstore as of June 30, 1988 and 1987, and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent 
basis. 
Robin L. Byford 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE 
BALANCE SHEETS 

JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash ............................ $ 
Accounts receivable, net of allow­

ance or doubtful accounts of $167 
in 1988 and $819 in 1987 ........ . 

Inventory (Note 1) ............... . 
Prepaid expenses ................ . 

$ 
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 1) 

Land ............................ $ 
Building ........................ . 
Building improvements ........... . 
Automobiles .................... . 
Furniture, fixtures & equipment ... . 

$ 

21 

1988 

14,249 

27,873 
118,043 

4,193 
164,358 

5,000 
22,500 
37,414 
11,500 
21,311 
97,725 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1987 

5,807 

29,936 
122,127 

3,064 
160,934 

5,000 
22,500 
37,414 
11,500 
20,936 
97,350 



Less:. Accumulated depreciation ... . 
Net Property & Equipment ...... $ 

. $ 

(72,198) 
25,527 

189,885 

LIABILmES AND FUND BALANCE 
CURRENT LIABILmES 

Accounts payable ................. $ 5,426 $ 
Accrued liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,204 

$ 7,630 $ 
FUND BALANCE .................. $ 182,255 $ 

$ 189,885 $ 
The accompanying notes are an integral part . of these 
statements. · 

(68,665) 
28,685 

189,619 

6,990 
1,721 
8,711 

180,908 
189,619 
financial 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND FUND BALANCE 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

1988 1987 
SALES . 

Retail ............... : .. .......... $ 146,346 $ 149,422 
Sunday School ...... : . . . . . . . . . . . . 253,602 247,957 
Vacation Bible School . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,666 24,530 
Postage and handling. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,897 12,039 

. $ 435,511 $ 433,948 
COST OF GOODS SOLD . . . . . . . . . . 309,699 297,884 
GROSS MARGIN .................. $ 125,812 $ 136,064 
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Automobile ...................... $ 2,465 $ 1,255 
Salaries.......................... 62,754 59,518 
Payroll taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,519 4,218 
Employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,925 8,729 
Advertising and promotion......... 11,757 14,500 
Utilities and telephone............. 5,882 6,731 
Repairs and maintenance . . . . . . . . . . 2,148 6,055 
Insurance........................ 4,635 4,681 
Miscellaneous . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,818 6,680 
Office supplies and postage . . . . . . . . 9,029 8,361 
Depreciation (Note 1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,533 5,776 
Transfers to State Assoc. (Note 2).. 6,000 · 6,000 

$ 124,465 $ 132,504 
NET INCOME ..................... $ 1,347 $ 3,560 
FUND BALANCE, beginning . . . . . . . . 180,908 177,348 
FUND BALANCE, ending ........... $ 182,255 $. 180,908 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial 
statements. 
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OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

1988 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING 
ACTIVITIES: 

Net income ...................... $ 1,347 $ 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation ................... 3,533 
Changes in current assets & liabilities: 

(Increase) Decrease in accounts 
receivable .................. 2,063 

(Increase) Decrease in inventory 4,084 
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid 

expenses .................. (1,129) 
Increase (Decrease) in accounts 

payable .................... (1,564) 
Increase (Decrease) in 

accrued liabilities ........... 483 
Total Adjustments .............. 7,470 

Net Cash Provided by Operating 
Activities ........................ $ 8,817 $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Acquisition of equipment .......... $ (375) $ 
Net Cash Used in Investing 

Activities ...................... $ (375) $ 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash ..... $ 8,442 $ 
Cash at the beginning of the year ..... 5,807 
Cash at the end of the year .......... $ 14,249 $ 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these 
statements. 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOKSTORE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

1987 

3,560 

5,775 

(2,950) 
(7,480) 

(476) 

775 

107 
(4,249) 

(689) 

(3,772) 

(3,772) 
(4,461) 
10,268 
5,807 

financial 

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
General-The financial statements of the Bookstore have been 
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, wherein income and 
expense are recorded as they are earned or incurred. 
/nuentories-lnventories are recorded at the lower of cost or 
market using the first-in, first-out method of accounting. 
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Property and Equipment-Property and equipment are recorded 
at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method 
based on the estimated useful lives of the related assets as 
summarized below: 

Building and improvements 40 years 
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 3 to 5 years 

Income Taxes-No provision for income taxes has been made due 
to the fact that the Bookstore is a non-profit organization exempt 
from income tax under Section 501 (c) (13) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. 

(2) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
The Bookstore has an agreement with the State Association of 
Free Will Baptists, whereby·· the Bookstore makes periodic 
payments of $500 to the Association. During the current fiscal year 
and the year ended June 30, 1988, the Bookstore incurred $6,000 
of payments in each year. 

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR THE FREE WILL BAPTIST BOOK 
STORE BEGINNING JULY 1, 1989 THROUGH JUNE 30, 1990 

SALES: 
Retail . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $151,500.00 

· Sunday School . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 265,000.00 
Vacation Bible School. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,000.00 
Postage & Handling . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,500.00 

TOTAL SALES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $455,000.00 
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES: 

Cost of Goods Sold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $315,000.00 
Salaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63,700.00 
Advertising & Promotion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,500.00 
Employees Benefits & Hosp. . . . . . . . . . . . 10,000.00 
Office Supplies & Postage . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,500.00 
State Association. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,000.00 
Payroll Taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,500.00 
Utilities & Telephone ................. · , 6,800.00 
Repairs & Maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,000.00 
Insurance, Building, Contents & 

Workers Comp. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,000.00 
Freight & UPS....................... 7,500.00 
Miscellaneous........................ 7,500.00 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $455,000.00 
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BENEVOLENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
1988 STATE ASSOCIATION 

We have distributed the following funds from January, 1986 to June 
30, 1988: 

OIL REVENUES 
1986 .................................... $ 78,903 
1987 .................................... $ 12,448 
1988 .......................... · .......... $ 3,100 

$ 94,451 
BENEVOLENT SUNDAY 

OFFERING ............................. $ 10,766 
Norman 1st ............................. $ 1,125 

$ 11,891 

TOTAL ................................. $106,342 
Joe Blair, Chairman 
N. R. Smith, Member 

STATE MISSION BOARD REPORT FOR 1988-89 
One day William Carey was meditating upon the verse "Go ye into all 

the world, and preach the Gospel to every creature," and as he 
meditated he asked "Lord, do you mean me?" The Lord seemed to say, 
"Yes, I mean you." Carey submissively said, "Lord, I will go and preach 
the Gospel." Carey told his friends, "I will go down into the well, if you 
will hold the ropes." This story of the call of William Carey is an old one 
and has been heard by most of us. The story emphasizes the fact the 
GO-missionaries greatly need CO-missionaries who will pray and 
support them. This is what missions is all about. 

We who are members of the state mission board are doing what we 
can to help our state hold the ropes while sending others to various 
places to preach the Gospel. 

During the past year we have been busy in many places. Seemingly, 
the most exciting advancement was made at Woodward. Allen Mabra 
was employed by the board and has been preaching in a beautiful 
facility there since May 1. The board purchased a complete building 
there appraised at $342,000.00 for $175,000.00. Everything needed for 
services was already in place except a piano. Thirty-three (33) people 
were committed from the beginning, and the names and addresses of 
many more prospects are on file. Churches and individuals are 
pledging to underwrite the loan payments for two (2) years of this 
state missions projects. The prospects there are great. 

Seven acres of choice property have been purchased in Hugo. This 
property is located on the Highway 70 by-pass. T.hree (3) acres are in 
the clear with only $12,000.00 owing on the remainder. Most of it has 
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been raised, and hopefully we will have a clear title to the remainder of 
the property by January 1, 1989. A nice sign has been erected on the 
property indicating that a· Free Will Baptist Church will be located on 
this property in the near future. An experienced pastor has expressed 
an interest in going there. Hopefully, an announcement will be made by 
the state meeting. 

Elk City is coming along well under the direction of our missionary, 
Larry Haggard. They have had a high of eighty-four (84). The mission 
board voted for them to start a land fund. More land is needed for them 
to expand their present facilities and also for parking. 

Vinita is also coming along well. They have had a high attendance of 
sixty-seven (67). Several improvements have been made on the 
facilities. Ken Stevens, our missionary, is doing a fine job of getting a 
church going there. 

Several "Back to Basics" Conferences have been held by the board. 
Response has been unusually good. Other such conferences are being 
planned for the near future. We sincerely hope our people will continue 
to respond favorably when a conference is held in their area. 

Mexican missions has also been emphasized. James Munsey and the 
Mexican Quartet have been in several fund-raising banquets over the 
state. The board voted to sponsor an annual time for promoting 
Mexican missions in Oklahoma. 

Our board and director stand · ready to assist in conferences, 
missionary scheduling, and anything else that will get the message of 
God's love to a lost world. 

Please pray for our missionaries, missions director, and the board. 
They have a tremendous responsibility. 

Thank you for your support of missions. 
Wade Jernigan, Chairman 
J.B. Chism, Clerk 

ST ATE MISSION DIRECTOR REPORT 
We have endeavored to keep churches and associations informed of. 

our mission churches, new projects, and future intentions throughout 
the year with handouts at quarterly meetings and periodic letters to 
moderators and churches. Our intentions are to use the postal avenue 
more in the future to enlighten Free Will Baptists in Oklahoma and 
raise funds for our work. 

Interest has been positive toward our newest church in Woodward, 
and the land fund in Hugo. Our board chose not to send pastor Allen 
Mabra across the State to raise funds in favor of beginning services in 
Woodward immediately. Oklahomans have responded well to the 
challenge of helping underwrite both salary and building payments 
there. Over half of needed funds for Hugo have either been given or 
pledged. 
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While promoting in churches and association, we have seen an 
increase in designated giving to the C.E.P. program this year. I 
appreciate pastors, churches, and associational moderators allowing 
me the opportunity to promote and preach throughout the year. It is 
very enjoyable to be in your churches, and homes, and have the 
opportunity to share in worship and fellowship. 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve the Lord through the State 
Missions Department. 
Berton Perry 

' TO THE BOARD 
OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST CHURCH ESTABLISHMENT 
PROGRAM-MOORE, OKLAHOMA 

I have examined the assets, liabilities, and fund balance arising from 
cash transactions of the Oklahoma Free Will Baptist Church 
Establishment Program ("Program") as of June 30, 1988, and the 
related statements of revenue and expenses for the year then ended. 
My examination was made in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards and, accordingly, included such tests of the 
accounting records and other auditing procedures as I considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

As described in Note 1, the Program's policy is to prepare its financial 
statements on the basis of cash receipts and disbursements; 
consequently, certain revenue and the related assets are recognized 
when received rather than when earned, and certain expenses are 
recognized when paid rather than when the obligations are incurred. 
Ac·cordingly, the accompanying financial statements are not intended 
to present the financial position and results of operations in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In my opinion, . the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly the assets and liabilities arising from cash transactions of the 
Oklahoma Free Will Baptist Church Establishment Program as of June 
30, 1988, and its revenues and expenses during the year then ended, on 
the basis of accounting described in Note 1. 
Jeffrey P. Chism, C.P.A. 
Tulsa, Oklahoma 
August 30, 1988 
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I 

ASSETS 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST 
CHURCH ESTABLISHMENT PROGRAM 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND BALANCE 
JUNE 30, 1988 

Cash ............................................... $ 
Investment Deposits (Note 2) ........................ . 
Loan (Note 3) ...................................... . 
Land, Buildings & Equipment (Note 4) ................ . 

TOT AL ASSETS ................................ $ 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities ........................................... $ 
Fund Balance ...................................... . 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE ...... $ 

11,560 
13,965 
7,000 

33,525 

32,525 
32,525 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements .. 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST 
CHURCH ESTABLISHMENT PROGRAM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES 
JUNE 30, 1988 

REVENUES 
Restricted Donations: 

Mission Churches: 
Elk City ........................................ $ 
Vinita ......................................... . 
Hugo ......................................... . 
Woodward ..................................... . 

Total Mission Church Donations ............... . 
Other Restricted Donations ........................ . 

Total Restricted Donations ...................... . 
Co-operative Revenue ............................... . 
Interest Income .................................... . 

TOTAL REVENUES .............................. . 

18,728 
15,096 
10,983 
3,897 

43;704 
26,844 
75,548 
44,526 

1,601 

TOTAL REVENUES .............................. $ 121,675 
EXPENSES 
Salaries and Benefits ................................. $ 76,018 
Travel and Promotion................................ 18,742 
Mission Church Expenses: 

Elk City ......................................... . 
Vinita ........................................... . 
Hugo ........................................... . 
Woodward ....................................... . 

Total Mission Church Expenses ................ . 
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3,928 
1,650 
8,251 
1,276 

15,105 



Telephone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,972 
Office Supplies and Postage. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,935 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,163 

TOTAL EXPENSES ............................... $ 117,935 
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES ........... $ 3,740 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements. 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST 
CHURCH ESTABLISHMENT PROGRAM 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
JUNE 30, 1988 

Fund Balance, July 1, 1987 ........................... $ 28,785 
Excess of Revenues over Expenses For Year 

Ended June 30, 1988............................... 3,740 
Fund Balance, June 30, 1988 .......................... $ 32,525 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements. 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST 
CHURCH ESTABLISHMENT PROGRAM 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 1988 

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES. 
The Oklahoma Free Will Baptist Church Establishment Program 

was created to assist in the establishment of Free Will Baptist churches 
in the state of Oklahoma. 

The Program uses the cash basis of accounting for recognizing 
revenues and expenses. 

The Program owns no significant fixed assets. Therefore, no 
depreciation is necessary. 

Salaries and benefits expenses of Mission Church ministers are 
included in salaries and benefits. 

The Program is exempt from federal and state income taxation 
under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
NOTE 2-INVESTMENT DEPOSITS 

At June 30, 1988, the Program had made deposits with two separate 
offices of the National Free Will Baptist Association. Interest is earned 
at variable rates ranging from 7 to 8% at June 30. The deposits earn 
interest semi-annually and is recognized when received by the 
Program. Except for $1,000 which has been established as a permanent 
endowment trust, the deposits are withdrawable upon written 
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notification by the Program. 
NOTE 3-LOAN 

At June 30, 1988, the Program had a loan outstanding to a former 
Mission Church. The loan earns no interest and has no fixed maturity 
date. 
NOTE 4-LAND, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT. 

During the year, the Program was deeded church facilities in Sand 
Springs, Oklahoma. It is the Program's intention to sell this property 
and is currently listed with a broker. Expenses incurred in maintainin 
thi~ property have been included in Other Expense and totalled $2,188. 
NOTE 5-TRAVEL AND PROMOTION 

Travel and Promotion expenses included $2,638 in expenses 
incurred by the Program on behalf of the National Free Will Baptist 
Home Missions Department to promote Mexican Missions. This 
amount has been reimbursed to the Program in July, 1988. 

CEP BUDGET 
JULY 1, 1989 to JUNE 30, 1990 

TOTAL INCOME .................................... $299,000 
COOP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46,500 
Designated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 102,500 
Loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 150,000 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS ........................... $299,000 
Salaries and Benefits ..................... 110,000 
Travel and Promotion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,000 
Office, phone, postage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,000 
Expense mission churches . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,000 
Loans .................................. 150,000 

CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD REPORT 
As your Christian Education Board we are happy to report another 

productive year. We have consistently improved the quality of our 
programs and. w.e have seen a good increase in almost every area, 
especially numerically. · 

The 1987 State Youth Conference was held at the First Free Will 
Baptist Church in Ada. This Conference consisted of two dynamic 
presentations by Multi-Media Inc., several workshops for youth on 
various contemporary Christian topics, and two stirring sermons by 
Dr. Ken Riggs. This event was attended by a record 483 young people 
and youth workers. 

We look forward to the 1988 State Youth Rally being an even bigger 
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and better one. Because of anticipated growth we are changing the 
location to the campus of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College on 
November 5th. The theme of this year's Youth Rally will be Looking/or 
Love. We will have another Multi-Media presentation with R. Dean 
Stone, a former board member, as the principal speaker and several 
workshops that will address many of the problems our teens encounter 
today. 

In February of this year we again co-sponsored with Hillsdale the 
appearance of Ron Ralston of Josh McDowell Ministries at the 
Hillsdale Bible Conference. 

A weekend Sunday School workshop was sponsored by our board 
at the Clinton Free Will Baptist Church of the Union Association in 
March of this year. If your church or association would like to host a 
similar event please mail an invitation to do so to our CE Secretary at 
the State Office. 

Also, in cooperation with the State Executive Secretary we 
promoted Roll Call Sunday in March. Awards were presented at the 
1988 CE Convention . 

• In May we had another boost for the youth of our state at the State 
CE Competitive Activities & Music and Arts Festival held at Oklahoma 
State University at Stillwater. This activity has always been difficult to 
conduct because of the many people and space it requires. This past 
festival proved to be the best yet because the space and facilities 
provided the opportunity for our young people to do their very best. 

There were approximately 1200 spectators and contestants 
attending the 1988 festival. We believe this activity is great because it 
not only teaches our youth the Word of God, but it involves them in 
many ways in building Christian character. Of all the participants in the 
National competition Oklahoma had 48 National winners. We are 
thankful for this great involvement. 

In June and July our board sponsored three State Camps. 
Approximately 500 youth and youth workers took part in these 
camps. Senior High Camp was held at Camp Look-Away in 
Tahlequah and Junior High and Junior camps were at First Mission 
Association Campgrounds near Drumright. 

By the time this report is given we will have had the State CE 
Convention at the Lawnwood Free Will Baptist Church in Tulsa with 
Rev. Bob Shockey as the principal speaker. We know this is a great 
time of challenge and training for our pastors, youth workers, and 
teachers in our local churches. 

Throughout the year we have continued to improve our Video 
Lending Library. We currently have 82 volumes on hand. These tapes 
are available to the churches of our state on a free will offering basis. 
We encourage you to pick up a catalogue containing a list of offerings, 
users' policy, and the procedure for check out. We anticipate more 
purchases in the near future. 
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,Our board took another step this year and hired a part-time 
secretary and librarian whose office is located in the State Office 
Building in Moore. 

We are thankful to God for richly blessing the work of the State 
Christian Education Board and in representing our State Association in 
providing Christian Education for all ages in the State of Oklahoma. 

Lastly, we request 6% of the cooperative receipts. 
In Christ, 
Don Guthrie, Chairman 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST 
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

We have examined the statements of cash receipts, disbursements 
and fund balance of Oklahoma Free Will Baptist Christian Education 
Board for the year ended June 30, 1988. Our examinations were made 
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, 
accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such 
other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

As described in Note 1 the statements of cash receipts and 
disbursements are summaries of the cash activity of the Organization 
and do not present certain transactions that would be included in 
financial statements of the Organization presented on the accrual basis 
of accounting, as contemplated by generally accepted accounting 
principles. Accordingly, the accompanying statements are not 
intended to present financial position or results of operations in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In our opinion, the accompanying statements present fairly the cash 
receipts and disbursements of Oklahoma Free Will Baptist Christian 
Education Board for the year ended June 30, 1988. 
Fentem, Quinten & Thomas, Inc. 
August 24, 1988 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST 
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD 

STATEMENT OF CASH RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS & FUND 
BALANCE FOR YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 1988 

RECEIPTS: 

Cooperative Giving .................. . 
Designated Giving ................... . 
Competitive Activities ................ . 
Youth Camp 1987 ................... . 
Youth Camp 1988 ................... . 
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·796.43 

2,140.00 
14,672.95 
8,875.00 



Youth Conference.................... 2,157.20 
Resource Materials Rental............. 587.53 
Capital Sales. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200.00 
Checking Interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 336.01 

Total Cash Receipts .......................... - $49,029.07 
DISBURSEMENTS: 

Meeting & Mileage . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,595.54 
Competition Expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,793.48 
Youth Camp 1987.................... 13,330.28 
Youth Camp 1988.................... 13,397.25 
Telephone & Office Supplies........... 677.66 
Youth Conference.................... 2,542.84 
Promotion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,401.40 
Capital Expenditures (Note 2).......... 4,333.92 
Seminar Expenses.................... 2,107.94 
Bible Conference..................... 387.34 
Checking Charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 58.38 

Total Cash Disbursements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $50,626.03 
. Net Change in Fund Balance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,596.96) 
Fund Balance July 1, 1987 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5,198.08 
Fund Balance June 30, 1988..................... $ 3,601.12 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

NOTE 1 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST 
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Summary of Significant Policies 
The Organization policy is to prepare its financial statements on a 

cash basis. Under this basis, revenues are recognized when received 
rather than when earned, and expenditures are generally recognized 
when paid rather than when incurred. Consequently in the case of this 
organization expenditures are normally paid in the month following 
when they were incurred. This however does not materially effect the 
financial statement. 

NOTE2 
Capital Expenditures 

Since the organization has chosen to report on the cash basis all 
capital expenditures for equipment are expensed and not capitalized. 
Therefore, the fund balance is reduced by the full cost of the 
expenditure even though the equipment may have a residual value. 
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REVENUE 

OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTIST 
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 1989-90 

Cooperative Giving .............................. $ 
Designated Giving .............................. . 
Music & Arts Festival ........................... . 
'89 Youth Camps (2) ............................ . 
'90 Youth Camp (1) ............................. . 
Youth Rally .................................... . 
Resource Rentals ............................... . 
Convention/Seminars ........................... . 
Checking Interest ............................... . 

TOT AL REVENUE ........................ $ 

EXPENDITURES 
Meeting & Mileage ............................... $ 
Music & Arts Festival ........................... . 
'89 Youth Camps (2) ............................ . 
'90 Youth Camp (1) ............................. . 
Telephone & Office Supplies ..................... . 
Youth Rally .................................... . 
Promotion ..................................... . 
Secretary ...................................... . 
Convention/Seminars ........................... . 
Capital Expenditures ............................ . 
Checking Charges .............................. . 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES .................. $ 

18,600.00 
1,000.00 
2,200.00 

15,000.00 
4,400.00 
2,500.00 

750.00 
250.00 
300.00 

45,000.00 

3,150.00 
6,000.00 

15,000.00 
6,000.00 

800.00 
3,000.00 
1,450.00 
4,800.00 
3,700.00 
1,000.00 

100.00 
45,000.00 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
REPORT TO THE OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION 

OCTOBER, 1988 

October 3, 1988 
To Oklahoma State Association 
of Free Will Baptists: 

Greetings from the Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College Board of 
Trustees. The ministry of Hillsdale continues as the lives of our 
students are further enriched and our denomination is blessed by the 
work and presence of these young laborers. The work of Christian 
Education is very important, and it is through the ministry of Hillsdale 
that the invaluable resource of youth is being molded into tomorrow's 
pastors, ministers of youth, music and education, and lay workers to 
serve our churches across the country and around the world. 
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The preeminent aim of Hillsdale is to produce young men and 
women who will love the Lord, live the Word and lead the lost to 
Christ. In pursuing this aim, Hillsdale was blessed during the 1987-88 
school year with a total of 154 students. During this time, each 
student made an important contribution to the campus life at 
Hillsdale. 

We remain grateful for your financial support which is foundational 
to the continuation of this most important ministry. Twenty-six 
percent of our budget was derived from unrestricted gifts, and each of 
your gifts, whether large or small, is important. A complete Financial 
Report is included herewith for your review. 

It is with great enthusiasm that we view the future of Hillsdale. We 
are excited that we will begin a new year with Rev. Jim Shepherd as 
the President of Hillsdale and pray that God will bless and guide him 
as he helps to shape the future of Hillsdale. We are also most grateful 
for President Wade's many years of loyal and unselfish service to 
Hillsdale and wish him the richest of God's blessings in the future. 

We thank you again for your prayers and support. Through your 
continued efforts and the ministry of Hillsdale, God will continue to be 
exalted as young people are trained for His service. 
Respectfully submitted, 
Ron B. Barber 
Board of Trustees 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

August 15, 1988 
To the Board of Directors 
HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Hillsdale Free 
Will Baptist College (an Oklahoma corporation, not for profit) as of 
June 30, 1988 and 1987, and the related statements of revenue, 
expenditures and transfers and changes in fund balances for the years 
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College's management. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

35 



--, 
' ' 

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hillsdale Free Will 
Baptist College as of June 30, 1988 and 1987, and the changes in fund 
balances and the current fund revenues, expenditures and other 
changes for the years then ended, in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles applied. 

Our examination was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
the financial statements taken as a whole. The information included in 
the supplementary schedule of disbursements and expenditures for 
each student financial aid program for the year ended June 30, 1988, is 
presented for purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the examinations of the financial 
statements of the Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, and in our 
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Robin L. Byford 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
BALANCE SHEETS 

JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

CURRENT FUND 
Unrestricted 

ASSETS 

Cash .......................... $ 
Student accounts and notes 

receivable ................... . 
Bookstore inventory ........... . 
Office supplies ................ . 
Investments (Note 2) ........... . 

Total Unrestricted ............ $ 
Restricted 

Cash .......................... $ 
Investments (Note 2) ........... . 

Total Restricted .............. $ 
Total Current Funds .......... $ 
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1988 

5,918 

18,125 
5,457 
1,371 

23,927 
54,798 

8,661 
93,929 

102,590 
157,388 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

1987 

6,409 

15,280 
5,457 
1,149 

17,256 
45,551 

3,141 
70,541 
73,682 

119,233 



LOAN FUND (Note 3) 
Cash .......................... $ 
Notes receivable ............... . 

Total Loan Fund ............. $ 

ENDOWMENT FUND 
Cash ..... · ..................... $ 
Investments ................... . 

Total Endowment Fund ....... $ 

PLANT FUNDS 
Unexpended plant fund 

Cash .......................... $ 
Receivable from current fund .... . 

$ 
Investment in plant (Note 1) 

Land .......................... $ 
Buildings ..................... . 
Land improvements ............ . 
Equipment .................... . 
Library books ................. . 
Construction in progress ....... . 

$ 
Total Plant Funds ............. $ 

39,216 
284,242 
323,458 

736 
182,672 
183,408 

174 
2,163 
2,337 

55,000 
1,790,759 

155,159 
339,723 

45,808 
11,300 

2,397,749 
2,400,086 

$ 38,828 
277,619 

$ 316,447 

$ 134 
172,699 

$ 172,833 

$ 1,404 
2,163 

$ 3,567 

$ 55,000 
1,790,759 

136,495 
326,572 
39,850 

-0-
$ 2,348,676 
$ 2,352,243 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial 
statements. 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
1988 1987 

CURRENT FUND 
Unrestricted 

Accrued liabilities ............... $ 10,160 $ 1,525 
Due to unexpended plant fund .. 2,163 2,163 
Fund balance .................. 42,375 41,863 

Total Unrestricted ............ $ 54,798 $ 45,551 
Restricted 

Scholarship funds ............... $ 80,646 $ 66,649 
Restricted gifts ................. 21,944 7,033 

Total Restricted .............. $ 102,590 $ 73,682 
Total Current Funds .......... $ 157,388 $ 119,233 

LOAN FUND (Note 3) 
Fund balance .................... 323,458 316,447 

Total Loan Fund ............. $ 323,458 $ 316,447 
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ENDOWMENT FUND (Note 4) 
Fund balance .................... $ 183,408 $ 172,833 

Total Endowment Fund ....... $ 183,408 $ 172,833 

PLANT FUNDS 
Unexpended plant fund 

Fund balance .................. $ 2,337 $ 3,567 
Investment in plant 

Notes payable (Note 5) ......... $ 61,281 $ 52,910 
Net investment in plant ......... 2,336,468 2,295,766 

$ 2,397,749 $ 2,348,676 
Total Plant Funds ............. $ 2,400,086 $ 2,352,243 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 

1988 1987 
REVENUES 

Educational and General-
Student tuition and fees ......... $ 219,412 $ 213,548 
State Association of Free Will 

Baptist's allocation ............ 83,115 78,567 
Restricted and unrestricted gifts .. 204,191 223,172 
Organized activities relating 

to education departments ...... 21,398 16,948 
Rental of facilities ............... 26,661 23,717 
Interest and other .............. 28,865 33,437 

Total Educational and General .$ 583,642 $ 589,389 
Student Aid .................... $ 29,375 $ 29,998 

Auxiliary Enterprises-
Residence halls ................. $ 49,210 $ 57,236 
Food services .................. 66,369 77,262 
Student union .................. 877 498 
Bookstore revenues ............. 18,061 15,641 

Total Auxiliary 
Enterprises ................ $ 134,517 $ 150,637 

Total Revenues ............... $ 747,534 $ 770,024 

EXPENDITURES 
Instruction ..................... $ 109,609 $ 113,877 
Library ........................ 17,347 17,619 
Operation and maintenance of 

physical plant ................ 54,836 57,291 
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Organized activities related to 
educational departments ....... 9,190 9,118 

General administration .......... 111,743 108,566 
General institutional ............. 122,217 147,838 
Promotional .................... 78,454 79,124 
Student services ................ 20,414 21,006 
External studies ................ 4,313 3,236 

Total Educational 
and General ............... $ 528,123 $ 557,675 

Student Aid .................... $ 56,976 $ 53,300 
Auxiliary Enterprises-

Residence Halls ................ $ 44,346 $ 42,296 
Food services .................. 61,690 71,593 
Athletics ....................... 21,269 14,390 
Bookstore purchases ............ 12,120 13,469 

Total Auxiliary Enterprises ..... $ 139,425 $ 141,748 
Total Expenditures ............ $ 724,524 $ 752,723 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
·EXPENDITURES ................. $ 23,010 $ 17,301 

TRANSFERS 
To-

Plant fund-unexpended for future 
projects and building fund ..... $ $ 

Plant fund-investment .......... (22,498) (26,464) 
Total Transfers ............... $ (22,498) $ (26,464) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASES) IN 
FUND BALANCES ............... $ 512 $ (9,163) 

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial 
statements. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 1988 AND 1987 
NOTE I-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

General-The significant accounting policies followed by the 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College are described below to enhance the 
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader. 

Accrual Basis-The financial statements of the Hillsdale Free Will 
Baptist College have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 
except for depreciation. Depreciation is not taken on depreciable 
assets comprising the physical plant in conformity with the reporting 
objectives of accounting for resources received and used rather than 
the determination of net income. The statement of curent funds related 
to the current reporting period. It does not purport to present the 
results of operations or the net income or loss for the period as would a 
statement of income or a statement of revenues and expenses. 

Fur;id Accounting-In order to ensure observance of limitations and 
restrictions placed on the use of the resources available to the College, 
the accounts of the College are maintained in accordance with 
principles of "fund accounting." This is the procedure by which 
resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and 
reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or 
objectives specified. Separate accounts are maintained for each fund; 
however, in the accompanying financial statements, funds that have 
similar characteristics have been combined into fund groups. 
Accordingly, all financial transaction have been recorded and reported 
by fund group. 

NOTE 2-INVESTMENTS , 
Investments exclusive of physical plant are recorded at cost; 

investments received by gift are carried at market value at the date of 
acquisition. As of June 30, 1988 and 1987, investments of the restricted 
and unrestricted funds were composed of the following: 

Unrestricted Fund 1988 
Investor Diversified Services Funds ... $ 18,999 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,928 

$ 23,927 

Restricted Fund 
Investor Diversified Services Funds ... $ 44,649 

49,280 
93,929 

Certificate of Deposit ............. .. 
$ 

41 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1987 
12,328 
4,928 

17,256 

~1,761 
49,280 
70,541 



NOTE 3-LOAN FUND 
The loan fund reflects activity with respect to the National Direct 

Student Loan program which is funded primarily by the Department of 
Education. The College provides matching funds equal to one-ninth of 
the Federal funds received. This program, along with the College 
Work-Study, Pell Grant and Supplemental Educational Opportunity 
Grant program disbursements are reflected in the supplemental 
schedules and letters following these footnotes. 

NOTE 4-ENDOWMENT FUND 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1983, the governing board of 

the College determined that certain funds were to be retained and 
invested as an endowment. The board stipulated that the principal is 
to remain invested and the interest income is to be placed in the 
current unrestricted funds. Gifts to the Endowment Fund totaled 
$10,575 and $20,120 for fiscal years ending June 30, 1988 and 1987 
respectively. 

NOTE 5-NOTES PAYABLE 
As of June 30, 1988 and 1987, the College had the following long-term 

notes payable in the Plant Fund: 

8.5% mortgage payable to bank, 
due in monthly installments of $483 
through December, 1999, collateralized 
by real estate. $ 

10.5% note payable to bank, interest 
due monthly, principal due in full 
8-21-88, unsecured 

10.5% note payable to bank, interest 
due monthly, principal due in full 
1-26-89, unsecured 

15% note payable to ITT Business 
Communications Corporation due in 
monthly installments of $352 through 
August, 1988 collateralized by 
telephone equipment. 

9% note payable to bank, due in 
monthly installments of $1,013 through 
November, 1987, collateralized by 
real estate. 
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$ 

1988 

42,455 

9,068 

9,068 

690 

-0-
61,281 

$ 

$ 

1987 

44,546 

-0-

-0-

-0-

4,139 
52,910 



NOTE 5-NOTES PAYABLE (Continued) 
The following is a summary of the principal due in the next five years 

and thereafter: 
For the Year Ended 

June 30, 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 

Thereafter 

$ 

$ 

Amount 
21,103 
2,478 
2,696 
2,935 
3,195 

28,874 
61,281 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 1988 

EXHIBIT A 
DISBURSEMENTS 

Perkins Loan Program ................................. $36,538 

EXPENDITURES 
College Work-Study Program ........................... $31,498 
Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program .... $ 5,786 
Pell Grant Program ................................... $76,180 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

REPORT ON INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROL 
JUNE 30, 1988 

EXHIBIT B 
We have examined the balance sheets of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist 

College as of June 30, 1988 and 1987, and the related statements of 
. revenue, expenditures and transfers and changes in fund balances for 
the years then ended, and have issued our reports thereon dated 
August 15, 1988. As a part of our examination, we made a study and 
evaluation of the system of internal accounting control of Hillsdale Free 
Will Baptist College to the extent we considered necessary to evaluate 
auditing standards and the standards for financial and compliance 
audits contained in the U.S. General Accounting Office's Standards 
for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities and 
Functions. 

The purpose of our study and evaluation was to determine the 
nature, timing, and extent of performing the auditing procedures 
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necessary for expressing an opinion on the entity's basic financial 
statements. Our study and evaluation was more limited than would be 
necessary to express an opinion on the system of internal accounting 
control taken as a whole or on any of the categories of controls 
identified above. 

The management of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College is responsible 
for establishing and maintaining a system of internal accounting 
control. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by 
management are required to assess the expected benefits and related 
costs of control procedures. The objectives of a system are to provide 
management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets 
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and 
that transactions are executed in accordance with management's 
authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Because of the inherent limitations in any system of internal 
accounting control, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and 
not be detected. Also projection of any evaluation of the system to 
future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the procedures may deteriorate. 

Our study and evaluation made for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph would not necessarily disclose all material 
weaknesses in the system. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the system of internal accounting control of the Hillsdale Free Will 
Baptist College taken as a whole. However, our study and evaluation 
disclosed no condition that we believe to be a material weakness in the 
system of internal accounting control. 

This report is intended solely for the use of management and the U.S. 
Department of Education and should not be used for any other 
purpose. 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 

AUDITOR'S COMMENT ON COMPLIANCE 
JUNE 30, 1988 . 

EXHIBIT C 
We have examined the accompanying financial statements of 

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College as of and for the years ended June 
30, 1988 and 1987, and have issued our report thereon dated August 15, 
1988. As part of our examination, we made a study and evaluation of 
those internal administrative methods and procedures established by 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College to administer and account for 
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Student Financial Assistance Programs in accordance with the 
significant administrative · requirements of the Department of 
Education's May 1988 Audit Guide for Student Financial Assistance 
Programs Section II and the following compliance requirements. 

I. CASH MANAGEMENT 
II. FINANCIAL REPORTING 
Ill. INSTITUTIONAL ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION 
IV. STUDENT ELIGIBILITY 
V. COORDINATION OF STUDENT AID PROGRAMS 

VI. ADMINISTRATIVE CAPABILITY-STUDENT FILE 
MAINTENANCE, FISCAL PROCEDURES AND RECORD 
KEEPING. 

VII. INSTITUTIONAL DISBURSEMENTS TO AWARD 
RECIPIENTS 

VIII. REFUND CALCULATION AND OVERPAYMENT 
DETERMINATION PROCEDURES 
Other Compliance Requirements Specific to Each Program 
as follows: 

Perkins Loan Program 
College Work-Study Program 
Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program 
Pell Grant Program 
Guaranteed Student Loan Program 

We understand that procedures and systems in conformity with the 
criteria contained in these significant administrative requirements are 
considered by Education to be adequate for its purpose in accordance 
with the provisions of The Higher Education Act as amended. Based on 
this understanding and our study and evaluation, we believe the 
College's procedures and systems were adequate for Education's 
purposes. 

Further, based on our examination and the procedures referred to 
above, nothing came to our attention to indicate that Hillsdale Free Will 
Baptist College had not complied with the material terms and 
conditions of the Student Financial Aid Programs. 

This report is intended solely for the use of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist 
College, the cognizant audit agency and other Federal audit agencies 
and should not be used for any other purposes. 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STUDENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 
COMMENTS ON AUDIT RESOLUTION MA TIERS 

JUNE 30, 1988 

EXHIBIT D 
There were no findings or recommendations in the prior years audit 

report. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
PROJECTED BUDGET 1939'.90 

REVENUES 
Student Tuition & Fees .......................... $ 
Gifts-Unrestricted ............................ . 

Restricted .............................. . 
Scholarships ........... ' ................. . 

Oklahoma COOP .............................. . 
Sales & Service ................................ . 
Organized Activities ............................ . 
Other ... : ............ ·; ....................... . 
Residence Halls ................................ . 
Food Services ................................. . 
Student Union ................................. . 
Student Aid ...... ; ..... : ...................... . 

TOTAL REVENUES ..... · ..................... $ 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries & Benefits ............................. . 
Travel ......................... · ............... . 
Equipment .................................... . 
Postage ....................................... . 
Supplies ................ : ..................... . 
Board of Trustees .............................. . 
.Ex. Studies Textbooks ......................... . 
Ex. Cour.se Development ....................... . 
Publications ................................ : .. . 
Repairs .•...................................... 
Music Department ............................. . 
Conference, Etc ................................ . 
Commencement ......•......................... 
Utilities ........................ · ............... . 
Telephone .................................... . 
Restricted ..................................... . 
Promotional Groups ............................ . 
Advertising & Promotion ....................... . 
HARVESTER ................................. . 
Book Purchases ............................... . 
Periodicals •.................................... 
Insurance ...........•.......................... 
Intramurals/Officials ............................ . 
Food Purchases ................•............... 
Vend.Purch./Stu.Union ......................... . 
Student Aid ................................... . 
Miscellaneous ................................. . 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 
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259,578 
225,720 

0 
43,200 
90,720 
28,620 

1,620 
55,420 
63,936 
93,766 

756 
30,780 

894,116 

438,880 
23,112 

7,452 
5,346 

18,306 
2,700 
2,700 

540 
13,284 
14,256 
1,620 
2,160 
1,296 

70,292 
8,100 

0 
7,992 

12,420 
10,368 
19,224 
4,320 

16,740 
5,940 

84,307 
0 

87,696 
15,174 

874,225 



TRANSFERS 
Plant Fund, Investment ......................... . 
Future Projects ................................ . 
Reserve (Cushion) ............................. . 

TOT AL TRANSFERS ........................ . 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES/TRANSFERS ............. $ 

OKLAHOMA HISTORICAL COMMISSION 
To: The State Association of Free Will Baptists 

9,091 
0 

10,800 
19,891 

894,116 

We have met only a few times this year, but have done a lot of 
thinking and studying as to how we might accomplish our objective as 
outlined in the resolution last year-establishing this commission with 
three members, one to be elected annually, with the authority to 
receive materials of historical interest by gift or purchase and properly 
preserve the same, to publish, as funds are available, materials to 
inform our people concerning their heritage and we were authorized 
the first year to receive up to $500.00 from the Executive Office to 
cover travel expense, supplies, postage, etc. The commission may 
also receive designated funds from individuals and churches to 
underwrite its work, with Hillsdale Library serving as the repository 
for these documents. 

In August we began with some printing, and made our first 
purchase. A large amount of very scarce materials became available, 
and upon learning of this we took immediate steps to secure it. 
Because we considered this a tremendous opportunity, we proceeded 
to try and purchase this library of materials dealing with Free Will 
Baptist history and heritage, even when we did not have the money to 
purchase it. That is where you come in. We need your help in 
accomplishing this and also in purchasing necessary equipment for 
storage of these materials, others we have purchased and for future 
purchases. 

We have previously written pastors across the State of Oklahoma 
asking if they could help us raise $2,500.00 to buy this historical library 
and the equipment to use in preserving it. The $1,000.00 asked for the 
amount of materials seemed reasonable and is an opportunity we may 
never have again. We are counting on initial gifts from 25 individuals 
or churches toward this need and all additional funds will be used for 
supplies and for other materials that will be needed or as they become 
available. We are counting on volunteer help to catalogue and 
preserve these materials and are looking for someone who can 
consistently donate several hours each week for awhile, as needed. 

We will have a packet of materials available for each association, 
asking each church to help with vital information regarding ministers 
on whom we should have a biographical sketch and to both present 
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and past history of the Association. We would ask each Associational 
Clerk in the future to mail one copy of the annual minutes to the 
Oklahoma Historical Commission. 

The address of the Commission is: 
OKLAHOMA HISTORICAL COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 7208 
Moore, Oklahoma 73153 

In order that we might continue our work we again request, from 
the State Office, $500.00 to cover supplies, postage, and 
miscellaneous expense. 

Thank you for your help in getting the work of the Oklahoma 
Historical Commission started and if you know of people who might 
have pertinent and significant historical material, please let us know. 
Dan L. Farmer, Chairman 
Thomas Marberry, Secretary-Treasurer 
DeArthur Yandell, Member 

OKLAHOMA STATE WOMAN'S AUXILIARY CONVENTION 
CONDENSED REPORT 

Sister Mary Ruth Wisehart spoke to us on "How Can I Build When 
Things are Falling Down Around Me?" Nehemiah I. 

Registration committee reported 89 members present, 19 visitors, 
four missionaries, and two ministers, for a total of 114. 

Resolutions passed are: (1) Be it resolved that the Oklahoma State 
Woman's Auxiliary endorse the WNAC Resolutions. (2) Be it 
resolved that the State Projects for 1988-1989 be: A. Foreign 
Missions, Darrel and Lila Nichols, Ivory Coast, $2.00 per member. 
B. Home Missions, Mexican National Pastors, $2.00 per member. 
C. Hillsdale, the purchase of Alton Loveless personal library, $4.00 
per member. D. Pre-Easter offering, Ernest & Elaine Holland, Ivory 
Coast, $10,000 goal. (3) Be it resolved that the State Woman's 
Auxiliary give Sister Mary Ruth Wisehart $250.00 for a personal love 
offering and expenses in appreciation for speaking today. (4) Be it 
resolved that we give a special offering of $500.00 to the Eunice 
Edwards Loan Fund with the money to be taken from the Retreat 
Fund. Motion and second from the floor to increase our State dues to 
$2.25. Carried. 

48 



THE FREE WILL BAPTIST MASTER'S MEN 
State of Oklahoma 

CONSTITUTION 

PREAMBLE 

The purpose of the Free Will Baptist Master's Men, state of Oklahoma is to 
provide a means of Christian fellowship and to deepen the spiritual lives of the 
laymen of the local church. Also, to provide a means of developing the abilities 
and talents of the laymen, and to promote the cause of Christ through a com­
plete, "total church program," as prescribed by Oklahoma State Association of 
Free Will Baptists. 

ARTICLE I 
NAME 

The name of this organization shall be known as the Free Will Baptist 
Master's Men, State of Oklahoma. 

ARTICLE II 
MEMBERSHIP 

Section 1. The membership of this organization shall be composed of the 
district associations of Master's Men, and any local chapters where there is only 
one chapter in the district, within the state of Oklahoma. 

Section 2. Every member in good standing of an affiliated district associa­
tion of Master's Men, or any local chapter where there is only one chapter in the 
district, is entitled to the full benefits of membership. 

Section 3. Each district association, or any local chapter where there is only 
one chapter in the district, shall submit an annual, written report to this body, 
(as a matter of information). 

ARTICLE Ill 
OFFICERS 

The officers of this organization shall consist of a president, vice-president 
and a secretary-treasurer. 

The officers of this organization shall be elected annually and may succeed 
themselves, at this level. 

ARTICLE IV 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Section 1. The executive committee shall consist of the elected officers of this 
organization and they shall serve as the program committee for each annual con­
vention. 
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Section 2. Ex-officio members of the executive committee shall be the 
presidents of the district associations of Master's Men, presidents of any local 
chapter where there is only one chapter in the district, and the state executive 
secretary of the State Association of Free Will Baptists. 

ARTICLE V 
MEETINGS 

This organization shall meet annually at 7:30 P.M. on the Monday night 
before the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists convenes. 

ARTICLE VI 
AMENDMENTS 

This constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote of any regular 
meeting. 

BY-LAWS 

VOTING RIGHTS 

Section 1. Every member of each affiliated district association, or any local 
chapter where there is only one chapter in the district, is eligible to vote on all 
questions and matters that might come before the Free Will Baptist Master's 
Men, State of Oklahoma. • 

COMMITTEES 

Section 2. The executive committee shall transact all routine business and 
shall act for the organization in the interim between meetings. 

Section 3. The executive committee shall meet at the call of the president. 
Section 4. A nominating committee, for the annual election of officers, shall 

be composed of the presidents of each district association, and the president of 
any local chapter where there is only one chapter in the district. 

Section 5. The president shall appoint all other committees, subject to the 
approval of the body. 

FINANCE 

Section 6. This organization shall be financed on the basis of offerings, dues 
and assessments. 
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QUORUM 

Section 7. One-tenth of the members of this organization shall constitute a 
quorum at any regular meeting. 

AMENDMENTS 

Section 8. These by-laws may be amended at any regular meeting by a two­
thirds vote of the members present. 

As adopted by the Free Will Baptist Master's Men, State of Oklahoma an­
nual session, in Muskogee, Oklahoma October 19, 1970. 

CONSTITUTION OF MINISTER'S CONFERENCE 

ARTICLE 1 

The Ministers Conference shall be called the Oklahoma State Free Will 
Baptist Minister's Conference, and shall be composed of Ordained Free Will 
Baptist Ministers who are regular members of some Orthodox Free Will 
Baptist church in the State of Oklahoma who have paid their dues. 

ARTICLE 2 

The officers for this conference shall be President, Vice-President, and 
Clerk-Treasurer, who shall be elected annually. 

ARTICLE 3 

This conference shall have the power to discipline its members. 

ARTICLE 4 

Members of this organization shall be all ordained mm1sters who 
participate in the benefits and activities of this body, and associate members 
who become members by payment of the annual dues. 

ARTICLE 5 

This conference shall meet Annually. 

ARTICLE 6 

This constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the members 
present at any regular session. 
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BY-LAWS OF MINISTER'S CONFERENCE 

ARTICLE 1 

The clerk or assistant clerk, or in their absence the senior minister in years 
shall call the ministers into conference. If a quorum is present the President or in 
his absence the Vice-President shall moderate the meeting. If neither of these are 
present, the senior minister in years shall be in charge. 

ARTICLE 2 

It shall be the duty of the clerk to enroll the ministers of the conference. 
Ministers shall present themselves with proper evidence of their rights to seats 
therein, and those enrolled by the clerk shall compose the conference. In case of 
questionable representation the case under question shall be referred to the 
Credential Committee. 

ARTICLE 3 

It shall be the duty of each minister belonging to this conference, to be active 
in pastoral or evangelistic services (disabled or retired ministers excepted). Any 
minister belonging to this conference shall report in each session in person or by 
letter, and failing to do so for two successive sessions shall be subject to 
discipline. 

ARTICLE 4 

Each conference shall be opened by reading a portion of God's word and 
prayer, and each session shall be closed with prayer. 

ARTICLE 5 

By a two-thirds vote of the members present ruling of the President may be 
overruled. 

ARTICLE 6 

This conference shall sit with open doors, except when it shall go into a com­
mittee as a whole. 

ARTICLE 7 

No member shall absent himself from the conference during its meeting 
without permission from the President. 

ARTICLE 8 

No person shall be allowed to nominate more than one member of a com• 
mittee, unless person nominated is not elected. 
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ARTICLE 9 

The President shall not allow discussion when not carried on in a Christian 
Spirit, or when he thinks it will cause discord. 

ARTICLE 10 

Anyone desiring to speak shall rise and address the President by the appela­
tion "Brother President," but shall not speak further until recognized. 

ARTICLE 11 

No member of this conference shall be allowed to speak more than five 
minutes, nor twice on the same subject without permission from the President. 

ARTICLE 12 

"I;hese By-Laws may be altered or amended at any regular or adjourned ses­
sion of this conference by a two-thirds vote of the members present. 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE, INC. 
BY•LAWS 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SECTION I 

The Board of Trustees of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc., an 
Oklahoma corporation, shall be composed of fifteen members, elected as pro­
vided in the Articles of Incorporation of said College, as amended: 

ARTICLE A-OFFICERS: The officers of the Board of Trustees shall be a 
Chairman, an Assistant Chairman, and a Secretary, each of whom shall be 
elected by the Board for a term of one year. They shall continue in office until 
their successors have been chosen: 

Item !-CHAIRMAN: The chairman of the Board of Trustees or his assis­
tant shall preside at all meetings of the Board. He shall be an ex-officio member 
of the Executive Committee. 

Item 2-SECRETARY: The Secretary shall record and preserve minutes 
of all meetings and acts of the Board of Trustees and countersign all deeds, con­
veyances, and other papers authorized by the Board. He shall have authority to 
call special meetings of the Trustees of the College upon the written request of 
two-thirds of the members of the Board; he shall mail notice of said meeting to 
the trustees ten (10) days in advance. 
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Item 3-EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: The Executive Committee shall 
consist of the Chairman of the Board of Trustees, the Vice-Chairman of the 
Board, the Secretary of the Board. The Executive Committee shall have authori­
ty to consider and act upon all questions affecting the College which may be 
brought before it between the stated meetings of the Board, or a quorum of the 
Board fails to attend a called or regular meeting. It shall transact such business as 
may be committee to it by the Board and shall act for the College on such matters 
as it may submit to it. The Committee shall meet at the call of the Chairman or 
the President of the College. . 

ARTICLE B-MEETINGS: The Board of Trustees shall meet each year 
at a time and place agreed upon by the Board. It shall, also, hold special 
meetings whenever called in accordance with the By-Laws of the Board. Such 
special meetings may be called by either the chairman of the Board, or the Presi­
dent of the College. 

ARTICLE C-QUORUM: A majority of the members or the Board of 
Trustees of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. in attendance at any called 
or regular meeting, written notice of which has been mailed by the Secretary to 
each trustee, shall constitute a quorum. No proxy votes shall be permitted. No 
ex-officio member shall be entitled to vote at meetings of the Board of Trustees. 

ARTICLE D-ELECTIONS: In all elections held by the Board of 
Trustees each member present except ex-officio members shall be entitled to one 
vote, and the result shall be determined by a majority of the votes cast. Due 
notice of any election must be personal notice to the members or a day on the 
minutes of the Board not less than one week preceding the election. 

SECTION II 
OFFICERS OF HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 

The officers of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College shall be a President who 
is elected by the Board of Trustees for an indefinite term. Other officers shall be a 
Vice President of Academic Affairs, Vice President of Student Affairs, and a Vice 
President of Business Affairs, each of whom shall be appointed by the Pre~ident 
with the approval of the Board of Trustees. 

ITEM ONE-PRESIDENT: The President shall be executive officer of the 
Board of Trustees and shall have general control of the College including its offi­
cers, teachers, students, and business. He shall render to the Board complete 
annual reports and to its chairman, Executive Committee or other committees 
such information as may be deemed essential to a thorough knowledge of the 
operation of the College and its promotion. He shall be a member of the Board of 
Trustees ex-officio and the Executive Committee ex-officio and shall have the rights 
and privileges of a member of the Board except voting. The President shall execute 
all documents, instruments, and conveyances on behalf of the college. Duties of 
the president and working relationship shall be further detailed in a format ap­
proved by the Board of Trustees. 

ITEM TWO-VICE PRESIDENT OF ACADEMIC AFFAIRS: The Vice 
President of Academic affairs of the College shall, under the President, fix the hours 
of recitation, govern, control, and regulate the conduct of the students, have general 
oversight of curriculum, student's records, and such other internal details and ad­
ministrative duties as may be delegated to him by the President of the College. 
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The Vice President of Academic Affairs shall act as President in the absence of the 
President. 

ITEM THREE-VICE PRESIDENT OF STUDENT AFFAIRS: The Vice 
President of student affairs shall be responsible for directing the religious activities 
of the College, serve as counselor to the students, and such other duties as may be 
delegated to him by the President of the College. 

ITEM FOUR-VICE PRESIDENT OF BUSINESS AFFAIRS: The 
Treasurer shall keep an accurate record of all accounts of the College and shall 
receive and expend as directed by the Board of Trustees and President, all money 
for the expenses of the institution. He shall make ~n annual report to the Board 
and furnish the Executive Committee with such information pertaining to his office 
as may be requested. He shall provide bond in whatever amount the Board may 
require. Until such times as the Board of Trustees may deem different the Treas­
urer's office shall be contained within the Vice President of Business Affairs office. 
The Vice President of Business Affairs may at the direction of the administration 
designate this duty to a subordinate officer. The Vice President of Business Affairs 
shall have general supervision of the financial business of the College, and shall, 
at the direction of the President, be responsible for the upkeep of all the physical 
facilities and premises of the College. His detailed duties are directed in a format 
approved by the Board of Trustees. 

SECTION Ill 
FACULTY 

The faculty shall consist of the President, the Vice President of Student 
Affairs, and all teachers of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College. Instructors and 
assistant teachers shall have the privilege of sitting with the faculty in stated meet­
ings but shall not have the right of voting. 

It shall be the policy of the College to employ on its faculty those who are 
members of Free Will Baptist churches that are affiliated with the National 
Association. Emergencies, however arising from the resignation, illness, death, 
or approved leaves of absence of faculty members may be relieved by the tem­
porary employment of instructors who are affiliated with any evangelical denom­
ination. Part-time or short.term instructors, deemed essential to the successful 
prosecution of a consistent education program, may be employed at the discretion 
of the President without respect of denominational affiliation. 

The faculty, under the authority and jurisdiction of the President, shall have 
general charge of instruction, attendance of students, examinations, administra­
tion of curriculum, discipline, and all matters involving the spiritual, physical, and 
social welfare of the College. The faculty shall be hired upon recommendation of 
the President. 

In the selection of the faculty qualitative factors shall be kept in mind. All 
faculty members shall be urged to pursue graduate programs in their respective 
fields. Except in special cases no faculty member will be required to teach courses 
outside of his field. 

SECTION IV 
ACADEMIC COUNCIL 

The Academic Council shall consist of the President, the Vice President of 
Student Affairs and the heads of the departments of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist 
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College: It shall determine the curriculum and academic policy of the College, pre­
scribe requirements for admissions, certificates, diplomas, and degrees, and super­
vise the courses of instruction offered by the various departments of the College. 

SECTION V 
CONTRACTS 

The Board of Trustees shall establish the College policy involving the execu­
tion of contracts, deeds of conveyance, the determination of salaries, and 
employment of all officers, representatives, faculty members and essential 
domestic and maintenance employees. The President of the College shall 
negotiate agreements, executive contracts, employ representatives, and supply 
vacancies incurred by the termination of contracts, resignations, or death of any 
essential employees. All contracts for building construction shall be let only to 
persons or corporations posting a valid performance bond and recording the 
same in the Office of the County Clerk of Cleveland County, Oklahoma. 

SECTION VI 
ADVISORY COUNCIL 

An advisory council shall be formed which is to be composed of interested, 
qualified persons in the various fields which will be of value in building and 
maintaining a strong academic program to carry out the educational program 
stated in the charter. 

SECTION VII 
AMENDMENT 

These By-Laws may be amended by a favorable vote of two-thirds of the 
qualified members of the Board of Trustees of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist Col­
lege at any meeting of the Board, provided that the proposed amendment has 
been submitted in writing to each Trustee one month in advance. This change to 
be subject to the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists. 

SECTION VIII 
ADMINISTRATIVE FUNCTIONS 

The President of the Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College shall be elected by 
the Board of Trustees, and he shall act for and on behalfbfthe Board in the con­
duct and management of the institution. He shall also be a member of the Board 
of Trustees ex-officio and of the Executive committee, ex-officio, and his duties, 
powers and term of office shall be prescribed in the by-laws of the College and a 
format approved by the Board of Trustees. 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
OF THE 

HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE, INC. 

Know all men by these presents, that, we whose names are hereunto sub­
scribed, do hereby associate ourselves together for the purpose of forming a cor-
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poration under the provisions of the corporation laws of the State of Oklahoma, 
and for that purpose state: 

ARTICLE ONE 

The name of this corporation shall be HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAP­
TIST COLLEGE, INC. 

ARTICLE TWO 

The purpose of this corporation shall be the creation, establishment and 
maintenance of a college and institution of higher learning devoted to the promo­
tion and impartation of higher learning, Christian education and such other 
education, instruction, learning, training and research as may be deemed essen­
tial for the cause of Christ and to that end prescribe courses of study and grant 
degrees. The doctrinal and theological position of this institution shall be that of 
the sponsoring denomination, Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists 
and the treatise of the National Association of Free Will Baptist as endorsed by 
the state body, and in connection therewith, in accordance with the stipulation of 
the Constitution and By-laws of the State Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

(a.) To prescribe courses of study for both resident and correspondence stu­
dents, ~hich shall include general education in the arts, Christian Ministries of 
Service and Biblical studies for wisdom; said courses to be taught in both a 
Junior College Division and a Bible College Division, and to award degrees, 
either graduate or post-graduate, to those persons satisfactorily completing the 
prescribed courses of study and to grant ·such other literary honors, including 
honorary degrees, as shall be deemed advisable. 

(b.) To charge and collect tuition as determined by the Board of Trustees 
and to create scholarships. 

(c.) To employ professors, instructors and other subordinate employees as 
may be necessary for the proper conduct of the college under the direction and 
control of the President of the College, with the advice arid consent of the majori­
ty of the Board of Trustees. 

(d.) To institute and carry on missions and commissions for missionary pur­
poses and investigations. 

(e.) To publish and distribute such pamphlets, literature or books as may be 
required in the conduct of such work and the general promotion of the College. 

(f.) To sue and be sued in its corporate name and to enter into contracts of 
every type and nature. 

(g.) To solicit support, receive, collect, hold and receive by gift or bequest 
personal property in any amount, money or other thing of value; to purchase 
real estate, to receive real estate that may be given, or devised to the college for 
achieving the legitimate ends of the college and to sell or mortgage the same as 
the need arises. 

(h.) To borrow money in payment of property for erecting buildings and 
making improvements and for any other purpose germane to the objectives and 
purposes of the college. 

(i.) To issue notes, bonds, debentures and other evidences of indebtedness 
and execute mortgages, liens and other incumbrances upon the property of the 
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corporation, real or otherwise, to secure the payment of any such evidences of in­
debtedness. 

G-) To transact any and all business connected with said College as may be 
necessary to achieve the purposes of said College. 

(k.) To obtain under Internal Revenue Laws of the United States and of the 
Revenue Laws of the State of Oklahoma exemption from income property and 
other forms of taxation. 

ARTICLE THREE 

The location of this corporation shall be in Moore, Oklahoma. 

ARTICLE FOUR 

The duration of this corporation shall be perpetual. 

ARTICLE FIVE 

The general control of this corporation shall be vested in a Board of Trustees 
consisting of 16 members, 10 of which shall be elected by the delegates to the an­
nual Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists-each of which shall 
serve for a term of 5 years, and until his successor is elected and qualified. Two 
members shall be elected at each annual sitting of the State Association for the 
expiring five year term and vacancies that occur on the board. One member each 
shall be elected by the delegates to the annual meeting of the State Association of 
Free Will Baptists of the states of Arkansas, Colorado, Kansas, Missouri, New 
Mexico, and Texas, each of which serve for a term designated by the states they 
represent. 

ARTICLE SIX 

An executive committee consisting of the Chairman, Vice Chairman,, and 
Secretary of the Board of Trustees shall possess all powers of the Board of 
Trustees between the stated meetings of the Board of Trustees. 

ARTICLE SEVEN 

All contracts for building construction shall be let only to persons or cor­
porations posting a valid performance bond and recording the same in the office 
of the County Cleek of Cleveland County, Oklahoma. 

SECTION IX 
AMENDMENTS 

This charter may be hereafter amended subject to the provisions contained 
herein and the laws of the State of Oklahoma. It is provided, however, that the 
Trustees of the College shall not propose or apply for any amendment which has 
not been previously authorized by an act of the Oklahoma State Association; 
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OKLAHOMA STATE WOMAN'S AUXILIARY CONVENTION 
CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS 

ARTICLE I 
NAME 

This organization shall be known as the Oklahoma State Woman's Aux­
iliary Convention. 

ARTICLE II 
PURPOSE 

The purpose of this convention shall be to bring the women of each district 
convention together for fellowship, sharing information, and encouraging one 
another in the work of the Lord. 

ARTICLE Ill 
OFFICERS 

The Officers of this convention shall be a president, vice president, 
secretary, assistant secretary, treasurer, and field worker. These shall serve on 
the state executive committee together with three members elected by the con­
ventiop as desired. These shall serve for a period of 2 years. 

ARTICLE IV 
MEMBERSHIP 

This convention shall be composed of the officers of the convention together 
with each active auxiliary member of the district or local ( duly accredited by the 
credentials committee). 

ARTICLE V 
MEETINGS 

The annual meeting shall be held each year on the day preceding the 
Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists and at the place designated by 
said Association. 

ARTICLE VI 
AMENDMENTS 

This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting of the convention 
by a two-thirds vote of members present. 

DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

BY-LAWS 

ARTICLE I 

Section 1, President. The president shall preside over all meetings, appoint 
such committees as may be needed, call the executive committee together when 
necessary, be ex-officio member of all committees, and serve as chairman of the 
executive committee, see that reports are made promptly to the national 
secretary and perform all duties usually pertaining to such an office. 
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Section 2, Vice.President. The vice president shall preside in the absence of 
the president or by her request and otherwise assist her in the overseeing of the 
work in general. 

Section 3, Secretary. The secretary shall keep an accurate record of all pro­
ceedings of the convention and executive meetings, preserve all valuable papers 
and turn same over to her successor in office, and make an annual report to the 
national secretary on a form available from the NWAC office. She shall compile 
the districts slates of officers and addresses immediately after the convention. She 
shall also send a slate of state officers and addresses to the national executive 
secretary. She is chairman of the Credentials Committee. 

The secretary shall also serve as historian keeping an historical record and 
submitting historical information to the national executive secretary annually. 

Section 4, Assistant Secretary. The assistant Secretary shall assist the 
secretary in recording proceedings of convention and executive committee 
meetings and shall aid the secretary in all her work as needed. 

Section 5, Treasurer. The treasurer shall have charge of all funds belonging 
to this convention and shall pay out same only when authorized by the conven­
tion. The treasurer shall keep an accurate account and shall give a written report 
of all funds received and sibursed at each annual meeting of the convention. She 
shall also send an annual report · to the WNAC office ( executive secretary­
treasurer) at least ten days before the end of the fiscal year. She shall encourage 
support of missions through the WNAC Gift Plan, individual giving and special 
offerings. 

Section 6, Field Worker. The field worker shall have charge of all field work 
pertaining to, or necessary to, the promotion of the work of the convention and 
keep the national program before the district officers. 

ARTICLE II 
ELECTIONS 

The general officers shall be nominated by a nominating committee and 
shall be elected by .acclamation, unless there are other nominations. In case of 
more than one nominee for any particular office, a vote will be taken on each.' All 
elections shall be held at the closing business session of the convention. 

ARTICLE Ill 
EXPENSES 

Section 1. An appropriation of 18 cents per mile toward the expense of the 
general officers, when called upon to attend the executive committee meeting to 
plan program, secretary's expenses, phone calls, postage and stationery for of­
ficers will be paid by the convention. All field promotional work is subject to the 
state executive committee, who should approve all work done by state officers in 
the interest of state work, as well as expenses of the same. 

Section 2. An amount of $100.00 shall be paid on the expense of the state 
president to attend WNAC. If the president is unable to go to WNAC that we 
give the $100.00 for this purpose to whomever goes in her place providing she is a 
state officer. 

Section 3. The auditing committee shall be paid mileage the same as the ex­
ecutive committee. 
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ARTICLE IV 
COMMITTEES 

Section 1. Executive Committee-The executive committee shall be com~ 
posed of the five officers and three members elected by the convention. Five of 
these shall compose a quorum. They shall hold meetings for the transaction of 
business as often as necessary. It shall be the duty of the executive committee to 
maintain an overseeing of the work at large. They shall act for the convention 
when necessary. They shall meet with district presidents the night preceding the 
state auxiliary convention. They will send out a newsletter with expenses paid by 
the State Treasury. . 

Section 2. Resolutions Committee-A resolutions committee of five 
members shall be appointed by the president as needed. 

Section 3. Nominating Committee-The nominating committee shall be 
composed of at least one member from each district convention. Nominations 
shall be submitted by district with their annual report. These elected by the body 
at the annual meeting. 

Section 4. Credentials Committee-The secretary shall be chairman of the 
credentials committee, and other members may be appointed by the president. 
The treasurer shall be a standing member of this committee. 

Section 5. Finance Committee-The finance committee shall be appointed 
by the 'president. This committee audits the financial records of the year and 
reports on same to the convention. 

Section 6. Registration committee shall be provided by the district conven­
tion which is host to state convention. 

ARTICLE V 
FEES AND REPORTS 

Active members shall pay dues of $1.50 per year. With 25 cents remaining 
in the district, $1.25 to be forwarded to state where 25 cents shall be retained, 
and $1.00 forwarded to WNAC as required for membership fees. It shall be the 1 

duty of each body directly affiliated with the State Auxiliary Convention to send 
a report to every annual session. 

ARTICLE VI 
AMENDMENTS 

These by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of members present al 
regular meeting of the state auxiliary convention. 

ARTICLE VII 
GIFTS 

The desired plans for giving in the Woman's Auxiliary are those adopted by 
WNAC as follows: 
1. Mission offerings following each special season of prayer 
2. Co-Laborer offering (monthly or quarterly designated to WNAC General 

Fund) 
3. WNAC Emphasis Month in August or other time more convenient to help in 

support of WNAC General Fund 
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4. Memorial Student Loan Fund (special program and offering in September to 
assist worthy and needy students at FWBBC in Nashville) 

5. Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College Student Loan Fund. (Special program 
and offering in September to assist worthy and needy students at Hillsdale 
Free Will Baptist College) 

6 .. Tithes-Pay tithes on all tindesignated money received 
7. All offerings are to be forwarded through regular channels. 

ARTICLE VIII · 
WNAC DELEGATE 

Each district convention shall submit one nomination for a State delegate to 
WNAC with their annual report. This nomination (along with others as needed 
to make up 15 delegates to WNAC) shall be elected by the body at the annual 
meeting. It shall be the duty of delegates elected to notify president if they cannot 
attend WNAC. President shall appoint delegates as needed in absence ofregular 
elected delegates. 

QUESTIONNAIRE FOR MINISTERS TO BE ORDAINED Date ___________ _ 
NAME _______________________ _ 
ADDRESS ____________________ _ 
MEMBER OF _________________ Church 

1. Do you have license? 
2. If you have license, how Jong have you carried them? 
3. By what Association were they issued? 
4. How many sermons have you preached? 
5. Where are you preaching now? 
6. Why do you want to be ordained? 

7. Are you married? _______ How many times? ______ _ 
8. If you have been married more than once, is a former companion 

living? --·-----------------------''---
9. How many children do you have? 

10. Is your wife a member of the Free Will Baptist Church? 
11. How long have you been a Christian? _____________ _ 
12. How long have you been a Free Will Baptist? 
13. Is your wife willing that you be ordained? ____________ _ 
14. Do you or your wife have any habits that would hinder your 

ministry? 
15. If you have belonged to other denominations, give name of each and length 

oftime with each. _____________________ _ 

16. In your opinion, what is God's plan for financing his work? _____ _ 

17. Do you tithe to the church you are a member of? 
18. Are you willing to make any sacrifice that may be involved in this 

ministry? 
19. Are you willing to abstain from any indulgences that might hinder your ef-

fective influence in the ministry? _______________ _ 

62 



20. Will your financial circumstances hinder you in taking the pastoral care of 
church? __________________________ _ 

21. How much education do you have? _______________ _ 
22. Have you had any special training in doctrinal and pastoral 

theology? _________________________ _ 

23. Have you had any courses of study in Homiletics? 
24. Do you have plans to better qualify yourself for the ministry? 
25. Ifso, what are your plans? 
26. Are you resolved to devote yourself wholly to the ministry? ______ _ 
27. Would you be willing to continue preaching under license if this committee 

felt that it was best? _____________________ _ 

28. Have you completed the Ministers' Preparation Course? _______ _ 

QUESTIONS ON DOCTRINE 
1. Do you believe that the Scripture, the Old and New Testament, are the in-

fallible Word of God, and the only rule of faith and practice? 
2. Do you believe in the Trinity? _________________ _ 

3. Name the God Head 
4. Is salvation obtained through the Blood of Christ? __________ _ 
5. Name the condition of salvation ________________ _ 
6. Do you believe that speaking in an unknown tongue is evidence of having 

received the Baptism of the Holy Ghost? 
7. Do you believe in a second definite work .of Grace or Baptism of the Holy 

Ghost, separate and apart from regeneration? 
8. What composes the body of Christ? 
9. Does the Bible teach that God has an organized visible Church on this 

earth? 
10. Do you believe that Baptism is a Gospel Ordinance? _________ _ 
11. Who are the proper subjects for Baptism? ____________ _ 
12. Do you believe that Immersion is the proper method of water 

baptism? 
13. Do you believe that the Lord's Supper and Feet Washing are divine or-

dinances and should be observed repeatedly? ___________ _ 
14. A. Do you teach and practice these ordinances? 

B. Do you practice these ordinances at night? 
15. Do you believe in the possibility ofapostasy? ___________ _ 
16. Do you believe in the resurrection of the bodies of all men? ______ _ 
17. Do you believe that there will be a judgment when time and man's pro­

bation will close, forever and then all will be judged according to their 
works? 

18. Do you believe that immediately after the judgment the righteous will enter 
into eternal life, and the wicked into a state of endless 
punishment? ________________________ _ 

19. Do you believe that Christ at His second coming will close the gospel dis-
pensation, glorify his saints and judge the world? __________ _ 

20. I pledge myself to teach and defend the Free Will Baptist Doctrine to the best 
of my ability. If at any future time I preach or teach any doctrine contrary to 
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the Free Will Baptist articles of faith, I will surrender my credentials to the 
Quarterly Conference of which I am a member. 

. Signed ____ -___________ _ 

ARTICLES OF FAITH OF STATE ASSOCIATION 

1. THE BIBLE-The Scriptures of the Old and New Testament were 
given by the inspiration of God, and are our infallible rules of faith and practice. 

2. GOD-There is one living and true God, revealed in nature as the 
Creator, Preserver and Righteous Governor of the Universe, and in the Scrip­
tures as the Father, Son and Holy Ghost, yet as one God, infinitely wise and 
good, whom all intelligent creatures are supremely to love, adore and obey. 

3. CHRIST-Christ is God manifest in the flesh: in His divine nature 
truly God, in His human °nature truly man. The mediator between God and 
man, once crucified. He is now risen and glorified as our ever-present Saviour 
and Lord. · · 

4. THE HOLY SPIRIT-The Scriptures assigns to the Holy Spirit all the 
attributes of God. He is the Reprover, Comforter, Guide and Sanctifier of all 
men. 

5. THE GOVERNMENT OF GOD-God exercises a wise and benevo­
lent providence over all beings and all things by maintaining the constitution and 
laws of nature. He also performs special acts of Grace, not otherwise provided for 
as highest welfare of man requires. 

6. THE SINFULNESS OF MAN-Man was created innocent, but by 
disobedience fell into a state of sin and condemnation. His posterity, therefore 
inherited a fallen nature of such tendencies that all who come to years of account-
ability, sin and become guilty before God. • 

7. THE WORK OF CHRIST-The Son of God, by His incarnation, 
life, suffering, death, and resurrection effected for all a redemption from sin that 
is full and free and is the ground of salvation by faith. 

8. THE WORK OF SALVATION-The conditions of salvation are: 
1. Repentance or sincere sorrow for sin and the hearty renunciations of it. 
2. Faith or the unreserved committal of one's self to Christ as Saviour and Lord, 
with purpose to love and obey Him in all things. In the exercise of saving faith 
the soul is renewed by the Holy Spirit; freed from the dominion of sin and 
becomes a child of God. 
3. Continuance in faith and obedience until death. 

9. ELECTION-God determined fr~m the beginning to save all who 
should comply with the conditions of salvation. Hence by faith in Christ, men 
become His elect. 
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10. FREEDOM OF WILL-The Human will is free and self controlled, 
having power to yield to the influence of the truth and the Spirit and live, or to 
resist them and perish. 

11. SALVATION FREE-God desires the salvation of all, the Gospel in­
vites all, the Holy Spirit strives with all, and whosoever will may come and take 
the water of life freely. 

12. PERSEVERENCE-All believers in Christ, who through grace 
persevere in holiness to the end of life, have the promise of eternal salvation. 

13. BACKSLIDING AND APOSTASY-A person who has been regener­
ated or born again and is living in unconfessed, unforgiven sin, is rebellious to 
the principles of the Kingdom of God and His righteousness, and therefore is a 
backslider in a lost condition who must repent and be restored to the right rela­
tionship with God or be eternally lost. 

We recognize, according to Hebrews 6:4-6, that it is possible for a person to 
get in the condition that he could never return to Christ. This, we believe, is 
Apostasy; However, we also recognize that a regenerate person can fall into sin, 
be in a lost condition and still not be an Apostate. This person, through repen­
tancet can be reconciled to God. 

14. GOSPEL ORDINANCES-Baptism, or the immersion of believers in 
water, and the Lord's Supper, are ordinances ·to be perpetuated under the 
Gospel; Feet Washing, an ordinance teaching humility, of universal obligation, 
and to be administered to all true believers. 

15. TITHING-God commanded tithes and offerings in the Old Testa­
ment; Jesus Christ endorsed in the Gospel (Matt. 23:23), and the Apostle Paul 
said, "Upon the first day of the week let every one of you lay by him in store as 
God hath prospered him." 1 Cor. 16:2. 

16. THE CHRISTIAN SABBATH-The divine law requires that one day 
in seven be set apart from the secular employment and amusements for rest, 
worship, holy works and activities, and for personal communion with God. 

17. RESURRECTION, JUDGMENT, AND FINAL RETRIBU­
TION-The Scriptures teach the resurrection of all men at the last day. They 
that have done good will come forth to the resurrection of life, and they that have 
done evil unto the resurrection of damnation: then the wicked shall "Go away 
into eternal punishment but the righteous into eternal lif~." 

RULES OF ORDER 

1. At every sitting of the Association, business shall be opened and con­
cluded by prayer by the Moderator or whomever he may request. 
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2. Ministers and deacons present are invited to seats, allowed to take part 
in debates on all subjects, and to vote. 

3. Those who speak shall rise and address the Moderator. Personal reflec­
tions shall be avoided in all debates. 

4. No motion may be discussed until made and seconded. 
5. When a motion has been made and seconded, and a member opposes 

its discussion, the Moderator shall put the question, "Shall it be discussed?" If 
negative, the question shall not be discussed. 

6 .• If any proposition or motion under debate contains two or more points, 
it shall be divided at the request of any member, and the vote taken separately. 

7. Motions made and lost shall not be recorded. 
8. No one shall speak more than twice on the same subject without special 

leave of the Moderator. 
9. All questions shall be decided by a majority vote of all Members pres­

ent. 

BY-LAWS OF STATE ASSOCIATION 

1. The Clerk or assistant clerk, or in their absence, the senior minister in 
years shall call the Association into conference, and if a quorum is present the 
moderator, or in his absence, the assistant moderator shall take charge; and if 
neither of them is present the senior minister in years shall act as Moderator. 

2. It shall be the duty of the clerk to enroll the delegates to the Association, 
who shall present themselves with proper evidence of their rights to seats therein, 
and those enrolled by the clerk shall compose the Association. 

3. It shall be the duty of every District belonging to this Association to 
send a letter to every annual session of this Association reporting in the same 
spiritual condition, benevolent work, and its statistics. Any District belonging to 
this Association, which shall fail to report itself for two successive sessions, may 
be dismissed from the Association by a two thirds vote of all members present. 

4. Each meeting shall be opened by reading a portion of the Bible and with 
prayer, and shall be closed with prayer. 

5. By a two-thirds vote of members present, a ruling of the moderator can 
be overruled. 

6. · This Association may correspond by messenger or otherwise with other 
religious bodies. 

7. This Association shall sit with open doors except when it shall go into a 
committee of the whole. · 

8. Any person not a member of this Association may be allowed to take 
part in its discussions by obtaining.permission from the moderator. 

9. It shall be the duty of all the Association to be present at the time ap­
pointed for each meeting, and anyone wishing to retire shall first obtain leave of 
the moderator. 

10. No person shall be allowed to nominate more than one member of any 
committee, provided the person nominated be elected. 

11. The moderator shall not allow discussions when not carried on in a 
Christian spirit or when he thinks it will cause discord or division. 
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12. Anyone desiring to speak shall rise to his feet and address the moderator 
by the appelation '' Brother Moderator,'' but shall not speak further until 
recognized by the moderator. 

13. No member of this association shall be allowed to speak more than ten 
minutes nor twice on the same subject without permission from the moderator. 

14. This association shall meet annually beginning on Tuesday following 
the second Sunday in October. 

15. These By-Laws may be altered or amended at any regular or adjourned 
session of this Association by a two-thirds vote of the members present. 

CONSTITUTION OF STATE ASSOCIATION 

PREAMBLE: From long experience, we the members of the Free Will Bap­
tist denomination, being regularly baptized upon a profession of our faith in 
Jesus Christ, and realizing the necessity of a bond in union and fellowship 
among us as a church; and to preserve and maintain correspondence and co­
ordination with us, do therefore ordain this Constitution for our better denomi­
nation government. 

. ARTICLE I 
NAME: This organization shall be known as the OKLAHOMA STATE 

ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS. 

ARTICLE II 
PURPOSE: The object and purpose of this organization shall be to unify 

the work of the various bodies composing this State Association, and to devise 
and execute measures for the extension of the Kingdom of God in connection 
with the various bodies in the Association, or that may hereafter be represented 
therein. 

ARTICLE Ill 
REPRESENTATION: Section 1. This Association shall be composed of all 

ordained ministers and deacons "'0th membership in some local church which is a 
member of a district Association with membership in the State Association. 

Section 2: Each District Association shall be entitled to a number of elected 
delegates equal with the number of churches composing said Association. These 
delegates may be recommended by the local churches and shall be endorsed by 
their district association. 

ARTICLE IV 
FINANCE: Each district association shall be responsible for sending $35.00 

per church to the State Association for State and National Convention fee, of this 
$35.00, $25.00 shall go to the State Association and $10.00 to the National 
Association. 

ARTICLE V 
DISCIPLINE: This State Association shall have the right to settle any ques­

tion of discipline, doctrine or practices that may properly come before it from any 
of the bodies composing said organization; furthermore, if there be any question 
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of discipline, doctrine or practices on the part of an affiliated assoc1at1on, 
delegates of that association shall not be seated until these questions have been 
settled to the satisfaction of the General Board. 

Section 2: Decisions of the General Board may be appealed in this•manner. 
All appeals shall come before the State Association when sitting in a committee 
as a whole. 

ARTICLE VI 
OFFICERS: A. The officers of the State Association shall consist of a Moderator, 

Assistant Moderator, Clerk, Assistant Clerk, and an Executive Secretary. Each of these 
shall be elected at the close of each regular session except the Executive Secretary. 

B. ( 1) The Executive Secretary shall be elected for an indefinite term. It shall be 
the responsibility of the Executive Board to seek out a prospective candidate and make 
their recommendation to the body at the state association in its regular session, with 
privilege of nominations from the floor. 

(2) In the event of a vacancy occurring during the course of the year, the Execu­
tive Board shall fill the vacancy until the annual setting of the association. 

(3) Any time a majority of the Executive Board, or seven (7) members of the 
General Board requests a vote of confidence on the Executive Secretary, a vote shall be 
taken. If such action results in the termination of the Executive Secretary, he shall be 
given sixty (60) days severance pay. · 

In the event of immorality on the part of the Executive Secretary, or of him teach­
ing or preaching doctrine contrary to the Free Will Baptist Treatise, he may be dis­
missed by a majority vote of the Executive Board with no severance pay. 

ARTICLE VII 
BOARDS: All standing boards shall be composed of seven (7) elected members 

who shall serve terms of 7, 6, 5, 4, 3, 2, and I years with such ex-officio members as may 
be provided for elsewhere, with no member serving more than two (2) consecutive terms 
of office or portion thereof, except: (I) the Board of Christian Education which shall 
consist of IO members who shall serve five (5) years with two members elected annually, 
(2) the General Board which shall be composed of one (1) member from each affiliated 
association, the chairman of each standing board, and the current general officers of this 
association, and (3) the College Board of Trustees which shall be composed as provided 
for in the Articles of Incorporation of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. 

The standing boards of this association shall be: Executive Board; Board of 
Church Extension, Missions and Evangelism; Board of Christian Education; and 
College Board of Trustees. . • 

No standing board shall meet in a functional meeting during the session of this 
association. 

ARTICLE VIII 
DUTIES, SCOPE OF ENDEAVOR AND QUALIFICATIONS 

OF STANDING BOARDS 
Section 1. EXECUTIVE BOARD: The Executive Board shall be com­

posed of seven (7) members who are members of an affiliated association and in 
good standing with the association of which they are members. They shall be 
elected at the discretion of this association. 

It shall be the duty of this board to act in behalf of the association when it is 
not in session. It shall be bound to carry out the directions of the association and 
shall hold itself bound by every consideration of morality and honor to carry out 
the wishes of this association and to act under its instructions in whatever 
technical rights, civil laws and the decisions of courts may give it in certain 
emergencies. It shall be the duty of this board to sigri their signatures to any and 
all papers concerning properties, indebtedness, bonds, or other legal documents 
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pertaining to the execution of the will of this association, exclusive of the College 
Board of Trustees. 

This board shall have the oversight of the Executive Department of this 
association. The members shall assist and direct such work for the general pro­
motion of this association as is deemed needful or necessary as the means avail­
able shall permit. The Executive Department shall serve as the coordinating 
agency of this association to correlate the work of all standing boards and agen­
cies. 

This board shall have the oversight of Free Will Baptist Book Store and shall 
endeavor to serve affiliated associations and churches and the community with 
literature and church supplies. Merchandising procedures shall be those ac­
cepted as normal retail procedures with the board being cognizant of the spiritual 
contribution of the store in distributing Christiari literature. 

All decisions of this board shall be governed by the general tenets of this 
association and shall not violate this constitution. 

This board shall organize itself and elect such officers as necessary to the 
orderly conduct of its affairs and labors. This board shall keep an accurate record 
of all meetings, decisions, and work done and shall make a report in writing at 
each annual session of this association. All records shall· be available to this 
association at its request. 

Whereas this board represents the association when not in session, it and it 
alone shall have the power to call the association into special conference provided 
each affiliated association shall be given notice at least ten (10) days prior to the 
meeting of such special conference. 

Section 2. GENERAL BOARD: This board shall be composed of one (1) 
member from each affiliated association, the chairman of each standing board, 
and the current general officers of this association. Each member must be a 
member of an affiliated association and in good standing with the association of 
which he is a member. The members shall be electecl'at the discretion of this as­
sociation. 

The duties of this board shall be to meet one (1) day preceding the .annual 
session of this association. This board shall serve as the credential committee 
with the duties and responsibilities assigned by Article V of this constitution. 
This board shall hear reports of all standing boards. It shall serve as budget com­
mittee and shall make such recommendations as deemed pertinent to this 
association. A complete and accurate record shall be kept of meetings of this 
board and a report shall be made in writing to this association iri its annual ses­
sion. 

The moderator of the association shall serve as chairman of this board, and 
the clerk of the association shall serve as its clerk. 

Section 3. BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION, MISSIONS AND 
EVANGELISM: This board shall be composed of seven (7) members who are 
members of affiliated associations and in good standing with the associations of 
which they are members. They shall be elected at the discretion of this associa­
tion. 

It shall be the duty of this board to labor to further die Gospel of Jesus 
Christ into the uttermost parts of the earth. In accomplishing this, they are to en­
deavor to establish missions and churches in communities within the bounds of 
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this association with whatever moral and financial assistance that may be theirs. 
In cases of small churches failing to function, whatever assistance deemed ap­
propriate shall be rendered to maintain the effective witness of that church by 
either direct labor with· the church or with an associational board in instances 
where the affiliated association has a functional board or agency. 

This board shall be empowered to receive and convey title to real property 
in the area of its labors. 

The promotion of missionary endeavors from a local, state or national level 
shall come within the scope of endeavor of this board. This board shall ·assist in 
maintaining prayer and financial support of missionary enterprises through 
whatever channels available. 

Whereas missionary and evangelistic labors are so intimately related, this 
board shall assist through participation or assistance in maintaining a strong 
evangelistic thrust in the life of affiliated association. 

This board shall organize itself and elect such officers as necessary to the 
orderly conduct of its affairs and labors. This board shall keep an accurate record 
of all meetings, decisions, work done, funds received and disbursed and shall 
make a report in writing at each annual session of this association. All records 
shall be available to this association at its request. 

Section 4. COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES: The College Board of 
Trustees shall be composed as provided for in the Articles of Incorporation of 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. 

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. is an agency of the Oklahoma State 
Association of Free Will Baptists and is incorporated under the corporate laws of 
the State of Oklahoma. The articles of incorporation are a part of this associa­
tion's record and delineate the purpose, duty and scope of endeavor of the 
members of this board. 

Section 5. BOARD OF CHRISTIAN EDUCATION: This board shall consist of 
10 members who are members of affiliated associations and in good standing with the 
association of which they are members. The members shall serve five years with two 
members elected annually. 

The duties of this board shall be to promote and provide assistance for the 
development and sustaining of a total Christian Education program in the local church 
and district association. 

This board shall also administer state-wide activities suc!J as, but not limited to, 
youth camps, seminars, and training programs, working with local agencies to distribute 
and employ effective methods and materials. 

This board shall organize itself and elect such officers as necessary to the orderly 
conduct of its affairs and labors. This board shall keep accurate record of all meetings, 
discussions, work done, funds received and disbursed and shall make a report in writing 
at each annual session of this association. All records shall be available to this 
association at its request. 

Section 6. VACANCIES: Vacancies shall occur when a member moves from the 
territorial bounds of this association, by death, by resignation or by removal from office 
by this association. In the event of disciplinary action where charges concerning 
misconduct, doctrine or practice shall have been lodged against a member of any board, 
his office shall be held in abeyance until such charges shall be concluded or as 
determined by this association. 

All boards shall have power to fill vacancies arising between sessions of this 
association. Such appointment shall terminate at the next session of this association and 
shall be filled by this association. 
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Section 7. EMPLOYEES: All employees of boards or agencies of this association 
shall be employed by agreement or contract with employing board or agency upon 
approval of this association except those elected by this association and the conditions 
of their employment shall be those approved by this association. 

The duties of the Executive Secretary of this association shall be: 
(1) He is to represent, or cause to be represented, the association at all affairs of 

interest to the association. 
(2) He is to promote the work of the association in such a manner so as to unify 

the efforts of the association. 
(3) He is to serve with all standing boards and committees of the association in 

an ex-officio capacity. · 
( 4) He is to aid in planning the work of the association by relating the activities 

and plans of one board to another. 
(5) He is to report to th!! association during each annual session. 
(6) He is to communicate to the affiliated members of this association the press­

ing causes and events before the association. This can be in person or by 
means of a periodical bulletin 'or both. . ·· 

(7) He shall serve as treasurer of this association. An accurate and complete 
record of all funds received and di~bursed shall be kept and a written report 
shall be included in his report to this association in its annual session. 

(8) Tlie conditions of employment shall be determined by the Executive Board. 

ARTICLE IX 
DISSOLUTION: Should this association cease to function, all properties 

and holdings shall go to the National Association of Free Will Baptists after all 
creditors are satisfied and indebtedness cleared. 

ARTICLE X 
AMENDMENTS: This constitution may be amended or altered at any 

regular session of the association by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of members 
present and voting, provided proposed amendment or alteration be presented in 
writing to the body one (1) day in advance. 

ARTICLE XI·· 
SPECIAL SESSIONS: Elected delegates to the last session of this associa­

tion shall be retained as standing delegates for special called sessions. 
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